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OUR MISSION

We have highlighted the mission of “invest for a better
life”, integrated the success of the culture of our
management team into current operations, and adhered
to the “customer-first, all wins, harmony-oriented,
environmental friendly, result driven” philosophy, thus
promoting sustainable corporate development. This is
proved that we proactively responded to stakeholders’
concerns and, in particular, persisted with repaying
investors’ trust with increasing returns and looking for
good opportunities. We will expand our business to other
sectors that would have good opportunities. We ensure a
steady supply of quality products and considerate services
to our customers, kept our promise to employees and
paid heed to their concerns, created a home-alike working
environment and a broad development platform, and
proactively engaged in social welfare in return for the
support and understanding of all walks of life.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEM
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Wang Jing (Chairman)

Wang Xing Qiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Zhao Shuang

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Su Bo (appointed with effect from 7 May 2020)

Tang Shengzhi (appointed with effect from 3 February 2020)
Zeng Guanwei (appointed with effect from 30 April 2019)

Wang Ping (resigned with effect from 7 May 2020)

Song Wenke (resigned with effect from 3 February 2020)

Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny (resigned with effect from 30 April 2019)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Lam Wai Kei

AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited

(appointed with effect from 18 May 2020)
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited

(resigned with effect from 15 May 2020)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Su Bo (Chairman) (appointed with effect from 7 May 2020)

Tang Shengzhi (appointed with effect from 3 February 2020)
Zeng Guanwei (appointed with effect from 30 April 2019)

Wang Ping (Chairman) (resigned with effect from 7 May 2020)
Song Wenke (resigned with effect from 3 February 2020)

Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny (resigned with effect from 30 April 2019)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Tang Shengzhi (Chairman)

(appointed with effect from 3 February 2020)
Su Bo (appointed with effect from 7 May 2020)
Zeng Guanwei (appointed with effect from 30 April 2019)
Song Wenke (Chairman)
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Wang Ping (resigned with effect from 7 May 2020)
Cheng Tai Kwun Sunny

(resigned with effect from 30 April 2019)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHES

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of China Sinostar Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and
all of its subsidiaries (together with the Company, the “Group”),
| am pleased to present the Group’s annual report for the year
ended 31 March 2020 to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

It has been the Group's business strategy to diversify its business
models into different business sectors and to strengthen
and expand its revenue streams. The Group is committed
to generating sustainable returns to its Shareholders and
enhance the Shareholders’ value. The management of the
Group formulates various business strategies to cope with the
development of the Group. Also, we monitor the markets closely
and take immediate and appropriate actions when needed.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the entire business
environment has been drastically changed, the trade war and
tariffs between the United States of America (the “"USA")
and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the frequent
geopolitical conflicts, the gradual increase in financial risks
towards the global market and the foreign currency fluctuations
created instability to the global economy. Even worst, the
outbreak of coronavirus in late 2019 further deteriorated the
operating environment and disrupted every aspect of economic
activities around the world. The prolonged lockdown of business
operations further devastated the global economy. In face
of the ever changing and complicated business environment,
the Group continued to adhere to its business strategy and
directions and made various efforts to overcome the difficulties
resulted from the downturn in the design and sale of electronic
products business and properties development market during the
reporting year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERES

Having considered the gloomy prospect of the design and sale
of electronic products business and the increasing uncertainties
in terms of tariffs, protectionist measures initiated by the USA
and the trade war between the USA and the PRC, as well as the
consumers favours and market trends, the Group disposed of its
design and sale of electronic products business during the year
ended 31 March 2020 and ceased to engage in the business
of design and sale of electronic products and securities trading
since January 2020. The Board believes that such decision
enables the Group to relocate its resources and reorganise its
asset portfolio.

On the other hand, the Group actively seized potential business
opportunities in the properties development business during
the year ended 31 March 2020. The Group continued to boost
its properties development projects and expand its quality land
reserves so as to strengthen the overall business as well as
financial performance of the Group during the reporting year.
Looking forward, the financial year of 2021 will be another
challenging year to the Group. The Group will maintain the same
prudent approach it has pursued on our business over the past
years. We will continue to focus on our core business as well as
seize business opportunities when they emerge so as to generate
better results to the Shareholders.

Lastly, I would like to thank my fellow Directors, senior
management and all our employees for their contribution and
support during the year ended 31 March 2020. | would also like
to thank all our Shareholders, suppliers, business partners and
customers, whose supports have contributed to our success in
the past year.

By the order of the Board
Wang Jing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 July 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEWEDN

DISPOSAL OF HARVEST WAY HOLDINGS
LIMITED

On 31 October 2019, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Fairy King Prawn Holdings Limited,
a company ultimately owned as to 70% by Mr. Lau Sak Hong,
as to 15% by Ms. Lau Jun Jun and as to 15% by Mr. Lau Yat
Sun, Kevin, both are family members of Mr. Lau Sak Hong, all
of whom are directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company,
thus a connected person of the Company, pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to sell and Fairy King
Prawn Holdings Limited has conditionally agreed to purchase
the entire equity interest in Harvest Way Holdings Limited,
being a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, (the
"Disposal Company”) at a cash consideration of HK$7,500,000
(the “Disposal”), details of which were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 31 October 2019, 4
November 2019, 9 December 2019, 17 December 2019, 7
January 2020 and 13 January 2020 and the circular of the
Company dated 17 December 2019. The Disposal was completed
on 13 January 2020.

The Disposal Company and its subsidiaries (the “Disposal
Group”) was engaged in the business of design and sale
of electronic products and securities trading. The disposal
agreement was entered into after having considered the ever-
changing technological landscape and the subsequent shifts
in the consumption of audio and video content that presented
challenges for the audio and video equipment manufacturing
industry over the past years. Many products in this industry may
become obsolete as a result of the technological innovations
and introduction of a variety of digital products. In addition, the
Disposal Group’s products are mainly sold through major mass
merchandisers and warehouse clubs. The growth of ecommerce
shopping steadily eats into the share of brick-and-mortar
stores which in turn creates a negative impact on Disposal
Group’s business performance. The business of design and sale
of electronic products did not contribute significant profit to
the Group and is expected to present pressure on the Group's
overall profitability in the near future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED

In addition, the liquidation of Toys”“R”Us, Inc., one of the major
clients of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2018,
resulted in negative impact on the Group's financial performance
March 2019 and 2020. Further,
protectionist measures initiated by the USA and the trade war

for the years ended 31

between the USA and the PRC resulted in negative impact on
the Disposal Group’s exports to the USA.

In view of the volatility in the market of design, manufacturing
and sale of consumer electronic audio and video equipment,
karaoke equipment and accessories, the Disposal represented a
good opportunity for the Group to realise its investment in the
Disposal Group and reorganise its assets portfolio.

The Group ceased to engage in the business of design and sale
of electronic products and securities trading after the Disposal.
The business of design and sale of electronic products and
securities trading of the Disposal Group were presented as
discontinued operations in the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale
For the year ended 31 March
2020, the Group recorded a loss from discontinued operations

and Discontinued Operations”.

of approximately HK$4,533,000, net of gain on disposal of the
Disposal Group of approximately HK$7,349,000, as compared to
the loss of approximately HK$13,308,000 for the year ended 31
March 2019.

The management discussion and analysis together with the
annual results will focus on the remaining business segments
within the Group after the Disposal, classified here as continuing
operations. The continuing operations comprise of properties
development, properties investment, properties management and
hydroelectric power business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

To align with the Group’s business strategies and directions, the
Group has reallocated its resources and reorganised its asset
portfolio to enlarge its business scale in properties development
and related services sectors in the past year. For the year ended
31 March 2020, most of the Group’s revenue were derived from
properties development and properties management business,
with a small proportion of revenue derived from properties
investment and hydroelectric power business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWED

Given the unexpected outbreak of coronavirus in late 2019, the
overall economy, social atmosphere and major industries in the
world experienced a panic economic downturn. It had inevitably
caused delays to some extent in the Group’s construction works
and daily business operations. Furthermore, the consumer
sentiment was also dampened and deteriorated the entire
business performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March

2020.

For the year ended 31 March 2020,
revenue of approximately HK$71,177,000,

the Group recorded a
representing a
decrease of 58% as compared to the revenue of approximately
HK$168,783,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019.
Administrative expenses increased from approximately
HK$24,278,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019 to
approximately HK$41,499,000 for the year ended 31 March
2020, which was mainly due to concession granted and the
increasing legal and professional costs. For the year ended 31
March 2020, the Group recorded finance costs of approximately
HK$3,077,000, representing an increase of 25% as compared
to the that of approximately HK$2,466,000 for the year ended
31 March 2019. For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
recorded a loss from discontinued operations of approximately
HK$4,533,000, net of gain on disposal of the Disposal Group
of approximately HK$7,349,000, as compared to the loss from
discontinued operations of approximately HK$13,308,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

As a result, the Group recorded a loss at the amount of
approximately HK$29,227,000 for the year ended 31 March
2020, representing an increase of 149% as compared to the loss
of approximately HK$11,724,000 for the year ended 31 March
2019.

Properties Development

Leveraging on the experience and connection of the
management and following the business directions of the
Company, the Group further expanded its business scale in
the properties development sector during the year ended 31
March 2020. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
owned three properties development projects in the PRC, namely
Xiguan Project, Bagua Town Project | and Bagua Town Project
Il. For the year ended 31 March 2020, revenue from properties
development were derived from the sale of remaining completed

properties of Xiguan Project.
8 China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED

Xiguan Project

The parcel of land located at Xiguan Village, Huanren County,
Benxi, Liaoning Province, the PRC, with a floor area of 46,242.6
sq.m. and a construction area of 80,462 sq.m. Xiguan Project
contained 19 buildings that created 775 residential and 30
commercial units and 121 parking units. The construction work
of Xiguan Project was completed during the year ended 31
March 2019.

March 2020,
approximately 15% of the gross floor area and achieved total

For the year ended 31 the Group sold
contracted sales of approximately HK$65,873,000, while
approximately 39% of the gross floor area was sold and total of
contracted sales of approximately HK$157,429,000 was recorded
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Bagua Town Project |

On 10 April 2019,
the entire equity interest of Benxi Zhongfu Shiye Company
Limited* (REFEEFE AR QF),
the PRC. The Group, through the acquisition, indirectly acquires

the Group completed the acquisition of

a company incorporated in

the land use right of a parcel of land located at Bagua Town,
Huanren County, Benxi, Liaoning Province, the PRC, with a floor
area of approximately 5,023 sq.m. and construction area of
approximately 7,500 sg.m. for other commercial use.

Bagua Town Project Il

Further on 29 September 2019, the Group completed another
acquisition of the entire equity interest of Benxi Zhongfu
Property Development Company Limited *(Z&K X & & it & 5
PR AT]). The Company, through the acquisition,
acquires the land use right of a parcel of land located at Bagua

indirectly

Town, Huanren County, Benxi, Liaoning Province, the PRC, with
a floor area of approximately 9,188.2 sq.m. and construction

area of approximately 14,700 sg.m. for other commercial use.

* for identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WD

The Bagua Town Project | and Bagua Town Project Il are at the
preliminary stage of preparation ahead of construction. Bagua
Town Project | and Bagua Town Project Il are important parts
of the only restoration and reconstruction project of the Taiji
Bagua Town in the PRC, with strong ethnic characteristics and
historical significance, located in the Central Community of
Huanren Manchu Autonomous County, Liaoning Province, the
PRC. The two projects are a combination of work, life, education
and tourism, located near the government square of Huanren
Manchu Autonomous County, Liaoning Province, the PRC. The
two projects are planned to include pedestrian streets, office
buildings, retail stores, shopping malls, tourism and historical
and cultural facilities. The Bagua Town Project | and Bagua
Town Project Il are expected to generate continuous growth and
enhance future business performance of the Group.

As a result, a segment profit of approximately HK$2,284,000
was recorded for the year ended 31 March 2020 while a
segment profit of approximately HK$28,066,000 was recorded
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Following the national strategies and the PRC government
general policy of “houses are built to be inhabited, not for
speculation”, the Board is optimistic towards the properties
development market in the PRC and believes that more favorable
policies, long-term management and control mechanism will be
implemented to stabilise the market. The Board will proactively
align and respond to the adjustment and calling of such policies
and capture the potential opportunities in the properties
development market in order to enhance Shareholder’s value.

Properties Investment

Revenue generated from properties investment was mainly
derived from the leasing of several parcels of land located in
Benxi City, Liaoning Province, the PRC for commercial use. For
the year ended 31 March 2020, the revenue was approximately
HK$1,072,000, representing a decrease of 16% as compared
to approximately HK$1,276,000 for the year ended 31 March
2019. A segment loss of approximately HK$1,656,000 and
approximately HK$1,185,000 for each of the year ended 31
March 2020 and 2019 was recorded, respectively.

* for identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED

Properties Management

To complement the properties development business, the
Group started to engage in properties management business
and delivered comprehensive property management services
for residential and commercial properties of Xiguan Project
during the year ended 31 March 2020. The Group is committed
to delivering the highest service standard and providing user-
At the initial stage, the
Group focused on the building up a professional properties

oriented services to its customers.

management team by providing integrated training in properties
management sectors to its front line and back office staff,
acquiring and improving its properties management system and

services.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group recorded a
revenue and segment loss of approximately HK$316,000 and
approximately HK$140,000,
segment results were recorded for the year ended 31 March
2019.

respectively, while nil revenue and

Hydroelectric Power Business

The Group has started to engage in the business of clean and
renewable energy since the financial year of 2016.

Revenue were generated from the operation and management
of two hydroelectric power stations located in the northern PRC
which are connected to the national power grid and mainly for
industrial use. There were various lockdown measures to contain
the spread of coronavirus since late 2019. Hence, the revenue
and profit generated from the hydroelectric power business
declined significantly during the year ended 31 March 2020.

The revenue and segment profit for the year ended 31 March
2020 were approximately HK$3,916,000 and approximately
HK$399,000,
profit for the year ended 31 March 2019 were approximately
HK$6,216,000 and approximately HK$1,855,000, respectively.

respectively, whereas the revenue and segment

Nevertheless, sustainable development in clean and renewable
energy is the global trend. The Group believes that continued
investments in renewable energy business will benefit the Group
in the long run and generated sustainable revenue towards to
the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEFWED M

PROSPECT

The outbreak and spread of coronavirus hit the global economy
severely. In addition to the health concerns, the overall supply
chains, travel industry, retails, as well as the financial market
also suffered greatly from the spread of coronavirus. Despite
the outside factors and challenges that put the Group in a
more severe situation for coming year, the Group will continue
to maintain its prudent investment and business strategies and
will adhere to its strategy to diversify its business models into
different business sectors and to strengthen and expand its
revenue streams and generate better results and prospect for the

Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2020, bank balances and cash denominated
mainly in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi amounted to
approximately HK$13,808,000 as compared to approximately
HK$75,480,000 as at 31 March 2019.

As at 31 March 2020, gearing ratio was 0.11 (31 March 2019:
0.06).
from the increase in borrowing level of the Group during the

The increase in the Group’s gearing ratio was resulted

year ended 31 March 2020. The Group will continue to monitor
and manage its financial structure and their potential risks in the
course of development.

As at 31 March 2020, the current ratio was 7.39 (31 March
2019: 2.54). The current ratio of the Group was maintained at a
healthy level.

Financing and Capital Structure

The Group finances its operations by a combination of
equity and borrowings. As at 31 March 2020,
had borrowings of approximately HK$20,742,000 (31 March
2019: HK$23,226,000) and bond payable of approximately
HK$11,500,000 (31 March 2019: HK$1,000,000), which were for
the Group’s refinancing and general corporate purpose. As at

the Group

31 March 2020, the Group’s borrowings and bond payable were
interest bearing at 12% (31 March 2019: 5.45% to 12%), and
6% to 6.5% (31 March 2019: 6.5%), respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED M

Completion of acquisition and the issuance of consideration
shares

With reference to the announcements of the Company dated
26 March 2019 and 10 April 2019 in relation to the acquisition
of the entire equity interest of Benxi Zhongfu Shiye Company
Limited* (REFEEEEFR LA
RMB10,000,000 (settled with RMB1,000,000 in cash and the
rest through allotment and issuance of ordinary shares of the

for a total consideration of

Company), the acquisition was completed on 10 April 2019 and
a total of 280,000,000 ordinary shares were allotted to Ms. Chu
Xuefeng, the vendor, pursuant to the acquisition agreement as
part of the consideration.

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group's transactions
were mostly denominated in USA dollars, Hong Kong dollars,
Renminbi and Canadian dollars. No foreign currency hedge was
made during the year ended 31 March 2020. The Group did not
have significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation as the
management monitors the related foreign currencies closely and
will consider hedging for significant foreign currency exposure, if

necessary.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31
HK$20,742,000 granted to the Group are secured by
the investment properties of the Group (31 March 2019:
HK$22,177,000).

March 2020, borrowings of approximately

As at 31 March 2020, banking facilities with an aggregate
principal amount of approximately HK$25,928,000 granted to
third parties were secured by certain items of properties for sale
under development of the Group (31 March 2019: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 March 2019: Nil).

* for identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB mER D AT

Employee

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a total of 25 employees
(31 March 2019: 60), of which 22 (31 March 2019: 46) were
employed overseas. The total amount of staff costs from
continuing operations of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2020 was approximately HK$5,761,000 (2019: HK$6,193,000).

The employees’ remuneration, promotion, salary increments and
discretionary bonus are assessed based on both individual’'s and
the Group’s performance, professional and working experience
and by reference to prevailing market practice and standards.
In addition, the Group also provides employee benefits such
as employee insurance, retirement scheme and training
programmes.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Disposal of Harvest
Way Holdings Limited” and “Business Review — Properties
Development” in this section, the Group did not have any
material acquisition or disposal during the year ended 31 March
2020.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Business Review”
and “Material Acquisition and Disposal” in this section, the
Group did not have any significant investment held for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

FUTURE PLANS RELATING TO MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSET

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Business Review”,
"Prospect” and “Material Acquisition and Disposal” in this
section, the Company will actively seek potential opportunities
in different industries and business sectors. However, the Group
has not executed any legally binding agreement in relation to
material investment or acquisition of capital assets and did not
have any plans relating to material investment or capital assets
as at the date of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB wmER D AT

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2020, neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries have purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Change of Directors and Members and Chairman of Board

Committees

Mr. Wang Ping, an independent non-executive Director, resigned
as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) and
a member of the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) of the Company with effect from 7 May 2020;
and Mr. Su Bo was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 7 May
2020. For further information, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 7 May 2020.

Change of auditor

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (which was appointed to fill
the casual vacancy following resignation of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu with effect from 1 June 2017 with reference to the
announcement of the Company dated 1 June 2017) resigned
as the auditor of the Group with effect from 15 May 2020 and
Mazars CPA Limited was appointed as the auditor of the Group
to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited with effect from 18 May 2020. For further
information, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
18 May 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EEkEAEEEREE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jing, aged 65, is the executive Director, the chairman
of the Board and the chairman of the nomination committee
of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”). He joined our
Group in July 2014. He is a vice chairman of Liaoning Federation
of Industry and Commerce* (GEEL T ¥BA ), a Liaoning
Province Model Worker* (& %2 4 % ) £ &) in 2006, and a
(REHAKRKEK).
He has founded Liaoning Shihua Group ((EZEEZESE) (“Liaoning
Shihua Group”) and he had been appointed as the general

member of People’s Congress of Benxi City*

manager of Liaoning Shihua (Group) Property Development
Limited* (EEEFEKE)FMERZER QA
since April 2007. He currently acts as the chairman of Liaoning

) (“Liaoning Shihua”)

Shihua Group. He has also been an executive member of the
Property Development Industry Association of Liaoning Province*
(BEAEHMETEHESERIEE) since March 2012.
2014, Mr. Wang was awarded as a Liaoning Province Excellent
Builder* (&
the Liaoning United Front Work Department of the Chinese
BELHEER). As at the date of this
Wang is the sole director and beneficial

In February

EHEAZEFRA) by various organisations including

Communist Party* (d $t3&
annual report, Mr.
owner of the equity interest in Liaoning Shihua, being the
substantial shareholder of the Group. As at the date of this
annual report, Mr. Wang is interested in 2,171,827,290 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 51.02% of the
total issued share capital of the Company. Details of his interest
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company are set out
in the section headed “Directors’ Report”. Save as aforesaid, Mr.
Wang did not hold any directorship in other listed companies in
the last three years. Mr. Wang Jing is the father of Mr. Wang
Xing Qiao, the executive Director and chief executive officer of

the Company.

* for identification purposes only
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EENEREEERE

Mr. Wang Xing Qiao, aged 32, is the executive Director, and
the chief executive officer of the Company. He joined our Group
in July 2014. Mr. Wang graduated in the University of Toronto
with a bachelor’'s degree in commerce with high distinction in
2009. He also obtained a master of philosophy degree in finance
from the Judge Business School of the University of Cambridge
in 2010. He is currently the deputy general manager of Liaoning
Shihua and is also the Shenyang regional general manager of
Liaoning Shihua. Mr. Wang is also a director of 11 subsidiaries
of the Group. As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Wang
is interested in 3,275,000 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 0.08% of the total issued share capital of the
Company. Details of his interest in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ Report”. Save as aforesaid, Mr. Wang did not hold
any directorship in other listed companies in the last three years.
He is the son of Mr. Wang Jing, the executive Director, the
chairman of the Board and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Zhao Shuang, aged 40, is the executive Director. He
joined our Group in July 2014. He graduated from Changchun
University in 2002, majored in marketing and sales. Mr. Zhao
was appointed as the head of assets management of Liaoning
Shihua Group in 2009 and later the general manager of Liaoning
Shihua Group responsible for assets management in January
2014. Prior to joining Liaoning Shihua Group, Mr. Zhao was a
project manager, an assistant to general manager and a vice
general manager of Dalian Dongzhan Group Co. Ltd* (RiBHE
£EAR AR from 2002 to 2009. Save as aforesaid, Mr. Zhao
did not hold any directorship in other listed companies in the
last three years.

* for identification purposes only
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EENEREERRE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Su Bo, aged 54, was appointed as the independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee on 7 May 2020. Mr.
(B¥E T#) and graduated
from Northeastern University (formerly known as Northeast
(1L TEBR)) in the PRC in July 1988.
He also obtained legal occupational qualification* (ERBtEE

Su studied Management Engineering*

Institute of Technology*

%) in the PRC in 2004. He was certified as a public accountant*
(X fit & &t #7), an internal auditor* (A #F 3 5 ) and a tax
accountant* (EfFEL75AM), as well as a public valuer* (& E
FF{5EM) in the PRC. He was also qualified as a constructor* (—
#jRiEAR) in the PRC. Mr.
and finance, taxation, asset valuation,

Su has years of experience in audit
law and construction
engineering. He is currently the deputy chief accountant* (&/=%
E@%Eﬂi) in Huanren Honghui United Accounting Firm* ({817

BBt A @5TAISE5AT) in the PRC. Save as aforesaid, Mr. Su did
not hold any directorship in other listed companies in the last
three years.

Mr. Tang Shengzhi, aged 38, was appointed as the independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee on 3 February 2020. Mr. Tang studied
Computer Application and Maintenance* (5 E# & L4 E) and
graduated from Liaoning Institute of Science and Technology
(formerly known as Benxi Zhijin Higher Technical College* (&<
ERemEERER)) in the PRC in July 2004. He has years of
experience in corporate management and governance. Since
September 2017, Mr.
executive director of Huanrenxuli Power Generation Co.,
(BCEEHEBRAF)

electric power business in the PRC. Save as aforesaid, Mr. Tang

Tang has become the chairman and an
Ltd.*
which is principally engaged in hydro-

did not hold any directorship in other listed companies in the
last three years.

* for identification purposes only

18  China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

BAFHTES

BORELE - 5458 ‘\—i—%iﬁﬂtaﬁéﬁﬁ
BIUFAITES  BEZZBECIFELFHEZES

8 - HEEN—NNANFLBEP BRI AZ(H]
MRITSR)EX TREETR - RHER_F

FNFAETERBERBERER YR BEERA
AEMEEED - REPEFTED - EM B ED KM E

BERTEEN o A B IR B — AR - #R 5
B RETH - Bl AEMGE  EERRET
RAEHASFAR - HAANTEECRERS
S EE PR ERIE R - B LR - Rib
ATF  BREAVEARM EDARNBEEAEE
B o

BEERE 38 WZTE-TF_A=-HAEZFT
BENIIERTES FWEZESETRUREREZS
ERIREEZEGNE - BAER_ZTNFLAE
FEMEER(ABANR e EERER)2E

BETEREREALE FREXEERERTA
BEZELH -B-E—+ENAKE  ELEDHK
BECEBHEERABZEFERAITES - &2
RIEERPENMEKREER - Lillsh - RiBEA=
FBEREVEREM ETARETTMAE B

fi °



DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EENEREEERE

Mr. Zeng Guanwei, aged 33, was appointed as the independent
non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
on 30 April 2019. Mr.
in engineering from University of Central Lancashire in the

Zeng received his bachelor’s degree

United Kingdom in June 2009 and a master of philosophy from
University of Cambridge in the United Kingdom in July 2011. He
has over 8 years of experience in engineering and finance. Mr.
Zeng worked at Huawei Technologies (UK) Co., Ltd from July
2010 to December 2012. He then established Beijing Wolfson
Technology Company Limited* Gt AKX HZEHBEREE R A
in August 2014 and has been the chief executive officer since
then. Mr. Zeng has also been working at Beijing Hefu Zhongqing
EREERERERRAR),

as a general manager since June

Investment Company Limited* (i
which he is a shareholder,
2016. Save as aforesaid, Mr. Zeng did not hold any directorship
in other listed companies in the last three years. As at the date
of this annual report, Mr. Zeng is interested in 5,510,000 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.13% of the total
issued share capital of the Company. Details of his interest in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company are set out in
the section headed "Directors’ Report”.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Baoling, aged 47, joined our Group in 2018 and
was appointed as the general manager of property development
and investment division. Mr. Wang studied industrial and civil
construction* (L2 8K A2 %) and graduated from Liaoning
Radio And TV University* (EEEEEHRAZ).
the Group, Mr. Wang worked in the industry of property
development and management in the PRC for years and has

Prior to joining

extensive experience in property development and management.

Mr. Hu Qiqi,
appointed as the general manger of clean and renewable

aged 32, joined our Group in 2014 and was

energy division. Mr. Hu studied journalism and graduated from
the Hebei Normal University* (Al4bEl&0 AE).
the Group, Mr.
operation department of the China Petrochemical Corporation.

Prior to joining
Hu worked at the research, development and

* for identification purposes only
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The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance practices to safeguard the interest of its
Shareholders and enhance the performance of the Group. The
Directors firmly believe that the maintenance of a good, solid
and sensible framework of corporate governance will ensure
the Company to run its business in the best interests of its
Shareholders as a whole.

The Company adopted all the code provisions in Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”) set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) as its own code on corporate governance practices
and guidance. During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to
the date of this annual report, the Company has complied with
the Code Provisions except the following:

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.2, every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. The Company
was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted by private act, the
Starlight International Holdings Limited Company Act, 1989 of
Bermuda (the “1989 Act”). Pursuant to section 3(e) of the 1989
Act, director holding office as executive chairman or managing
director shall not be subject to retirement by rotation at each
annual general meeting as provided in the bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”). As the Company is bounded by the
provisions of the 1989 Act, the Bye-laws cannot be amended to
fully reflect the requirements of Code Provision A.4.2.

To comply with Code Provision A.4.2, all the Directors will
voluntarily retire from his directorship at the annual general
meetings of the Company at least once every three years, and
the retired Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2, the chairman of the board
should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Wang Jing, the
chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 5 September 2019 (the “2019
AGM") due to his other engagement. Mr. Wang Xing Qiao,
the executive Director who took the chair of the 2019 AGM,
together with other members of the Board who attended the
2019 AGM, were of sufficient caliber for answering questions
at the 2019 AGM and answered questions at the 2019 AGM
competently.
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Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
director and other non-executive director should attend general
meeting and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. Mr. Song Wenke and Mr. Zeng Guanwei, the
independent non-executive Directors, were unable to attend the
2019 AGM and special general meeting of the Company held on

7 January 2020 due to other business commitments.

In order to comply with the Code Provisions, the Company will
continue to furnish all the Directors with appropriate information
on all general meetings and take all reasonable measures to
arrange the schedule in such a caution that may enable all the
Directors to attend the general meeting as far as possible.

Save as disclosed above, in the opinion of the Directors, the
Company has complied with all Code Provisions during the year
ended 31 March 2020 and, where appropriate, the applicable
recommended best practices of the Code Provisions.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The Board is responsible for leading the Group in a responsive
and effective manner. Each Director has to carry out his
duties in utmost good faith above and beyond any prevailing
applicable laws and regulations and act in the best interests of
the Shareholders. The duties of the Board include establishing
the strategic direction of the Group, setting objectives and

monitoring the performance of the Group.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of
three executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. More than one-third of the Board members are
independent non-executive Directors which enables the Board
to make decisions and judgement in an independent and
professional manner, assist the management in formulating the
Company’s development strategies, achieving corporate goals

and monitoring the Company’s performance.
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Mr. Su Bo and Mr. Tang Shengzhi entered into the letters of
appointment with the Company for a fixed term of three years
and renewable automatically for successive terms of one year
each commencing from the day after the expiry of the then
current term of the appointment. Save as aforesaid, all the
Directors have entered into formal service contracts or letters of
appointment with the Company, each for a fixed term of two
years and renewable automatically for successive terms of one
year each commencing from the day after the expiry of the then
current term of the appointment. All the Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years in
accordance to the Memorandum of Association of the Company
(the
Memorandum of Association, any Director being appointed to

“Memorandum of Association”). Also, pursuant to the
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
and shall be eligible for re-election.

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of
this annual report, the members of the Board are as follows: —

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jing (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Xing Qiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhao Shuang

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Su Bo (appointed with effect from 7 May 2020)
Mr. Tang Shengzhi (appointed with effect from 3 February 2020)
Mr. Zeng Guanwei (appointed with effect from 30 April 2019)
Mr. Wang Ping (resigned with effect from 7 May 2020)
Mr. Song Wenke (resigned with effect from 3 February 2020)
Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny

(resigned with effect from 30 April 2019)
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The Board has established schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decision and those reserved for
the management. The Board reviews this schedule on a periodic
basis to ensure that it remains appropriate to the needs of the
Company. The brief biographical details and relationship of
the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and
Senior Management’s Profile” of this annual report.

Mr. Wang Jing, the chairman of the Board and the Nomination
Committee and the executive Director, is the father of Mr. Wang
Xing Qiao, the chief executive officer of the Company and the
executive Director. Save as disclosed herein, the Board members
have no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship with each other.

Role of the Board

The Board decides corporate strategies, approves overall business
plans and evaluates the Group’s financial performance and
management. Specific tasks that the Board delegates to the
Group’s management include the implementation of strategies
approved by the Board, the monitoring of operating budgets,
the implementation of internal controls procedures, and the
ensuring of compliance with relevant statutory requirements and
other rules and regulations.

All the Directors have full and timely access to the information
of the Company as well as the advices and services of the
company secretary. The Board, may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses to assist them to perform their duties.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below: —

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior

management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the Code
Provisions and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

To comply with Code Provision A.2.1, the chairman of the Board
and chief executive officer of the Company were separated and
held by Mr. Wang Jing and Mr. Wang Xing Qiao, respectively.
The chairman of the Board is responsible for the Group's
strategic planning and directions and to provide leadership of
the Board while the chief executive officer takes the lead in the
daily operations and business development.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The three independent non-executive Directors, all of whom are
independent of the management of the Company, are highly
experienced professionals coming from diversified background.
They ensure that the Board maintains high standard of financial
and other mandatory reportings as well as providing adequate
checks and balance to safeguard the interest of the Shareholders
and the Company as a whole.
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The Board confirms that the Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive Directors a confirmation of
independence for the year ended 31 March 2020 pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Director’s Training and Professional Development

Under Code Provision A.6.5, directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills; and to ensure that their contributions
to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the year
ended 31 March 2020, all the Directors confirmed that they
had complied with Code Provision A.6.5 by reading materials
provided by the company secretary of the Company and/or
attending regular trainings on the topics relating to corporate
governance and latest change and development of regulatory
regime launched by professional parties.

Board Meetings and Attendance Records of Directors

Board meetings are held regularly at approximately quarterly
intervals to review the financial and operating performance of
the Group and held on ad hoc basis as required by the business
needs. All the Directors are given an opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda and give opinion. Regular
Board meetings and ad hoc Board meetings are attended by a
majority of the Directors in person or through other electronic
means of communication. In addition, all the Directors are
encouraged to attend the general meetings of the Company.
The company secretary of the Company records all matters
considered by the Board, decisions reached and any concerns
raised or dissenting views expressed by the Directors. Minutes of
meetings are kept by the company secretary of the Company.
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board held a total of

HE_Z_ZF=A=1T—HILFE EFHHE

13 Board meetings and two general meetings: TATIBREZFRGZEMABRRAE :
Numbers
Numbers of of general
Board meetings meetings
Name of Directors EEHE attend/held attended/held
HE R HE R
EERERAE BREAEEERK
Executive Directors HITES
Wang Jing T& 13/13 0/2
Wang Xing Qiao TES 13/13 2/2
Zhao Shuang FEES 13/13 0/2
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTESE
Tang Shengzhi (appointed with effect FEE (R _ZT_ZTF_A=-RAEZT)
from 3 February 2020) 0/0 0/0
Zeng Guanwei (appointed with effect BH(NR_E—NLFNA=ZT+HEZT)
from 30 April 2019) 11/12 0/2
Wang Ping (resigned with effect from EF¥(R-_Z-_ZTFH/+HEMT)
7 May 2020) 13/13 2/2
Song Wenke (resigned with effect RARXBHRZZ_TF - =HHE)
from 3 February 2020) 11 0/0
Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny (resigned with  E5K$5(R - — A FMM A =+ HEHT)
effect from 30 April 2019) 13/13 0/2
DIRECTOR’S SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS ERETRERS
The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities Transactions  ANA R FHRAIMEETFrE F T AESE
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to {THEA5XH7IEEFAI([IZESFR]])  (EAESHE
the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), as the code of conduct ﬁéﬁ%%s&%Z}f&ﬁF? Il e RAGFIEMEEBEEFL
regarding directors’ securities transactions. The Company & ' T EF=HA=+—HI

has made specific enquiry of all the Directors that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2020.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board and enhance its
expertise, the Company established three Board committees
namely, the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. Each of the committees performs

different functions.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with defined terms of
reference in alignment with the recommendations set out in
“A Guide for Effective Audit Committees”
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Code

issued by the Hong

Provisions. During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors and the composition was as

below: —

Mr. Su Bo (Chairman) (appointed with effect from 7 May 2020)
Mr. Tang Shengzhi (appointed with effect from 3 February 2020)
Mr. Zeng Guanwei (appointed with effect from 30 April 2019)
Mr. Wang Ping (Chairman)

(resigned with effect from 7 May 2020)
Mr. Song Wenke (resigned with effect from 3 February 2020)
Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny

(resigned with effect from 30 April 2019)

The members of the Audit Committee meet no less than twice a
year with the senior management and the external auditor. The
role and function of the Audit Committee include the review of
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and other financial reporting matters, the assurance of the
completeness, accuracy and fairness of the financial statements
of the Group, monitor the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems throughout the Group and
most importantly, the review of all significant business affairs
managed by the executive Directors in particular on connected
transactions. The Audit Committee also provides advices and
recommendations to the Board and oversees all matters relating
to the external auditor, as well as monitors and safeguards
the independence of external auditor. The Audit Committee
reviewed the financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2020. The Audit Committee met twice during
the financial year ended 31 March 2020. Works undertook by

the Audit Committee included:
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o reviewing of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and for the six months ended 30
September 2019;

o reviewing of the auditor’'s fees and its re-appointment;
and
o reviewing internal control and risk management system.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with defined
terms of reference. During the year ended 31 March 2020
and up to the date of this annual report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors

and the composition was as below:—

Mr. Tang Shengzhi (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 3 February 2020)
Mr. Su Bo (appointed with effect from 7 May 2020)
Mr. Zeng Guanwei (appointed with effect from 30 April 2019)
Mr. Song Wenke (Chairman)
(resigned with effect from 3 February 2020)
Mr. Wang Ping
(resigned with effect from 7 May 2020)
Mr. Cheng Tai Kwun Sunny
(resigned with effect from 30 April 2019)

The primary objective of the Remuneration Committee is to make
recommendations on the remuneration package and structure
of the executive Directors and senior management. In designing
the remuneration policy, the Company aims to attract and
retain executives needed to operate the Group successfully and
to motivate executives to pursue appropriate growth strategies
whilst taking into account the performance of the individuals.
The remuneration should reflect the performance, complexity and
responsibility of the individual, and the remuneration package
should include salary, bonus and share options scheme in order
to provide incentives to Directors and senior management and to

improve their individual performances.
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statements. The members of the Remuneration Committee met
twice during the financial year ended 31 March 2020. Work
undertook by the Remuneration Committee during the reporting
year included: —

J reviewing of the remuneration policy (including that of
the executive Directors); and

o assessing performance and reviewing the remuneration
package of the Directors and senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors
regarding the qualification and competency of the candidates.
It also considers the reappointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors so as to ensure that all nominations and
appointments are fair and transparent. It takes responsibility
in assessing the appropriate mix of experience, expertise, skills
and diversity required for the Board and assessing the extent to
which the required skills are represented on the Board. It is also
responsible for reviewing and reporting to the Board in relation
to Board diversity.
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Board Diversity Policy

In addition, the Company formulated and adopted a Board
diversity policy in 2013, aiming at setting out the approach on
diversity of the Board. The Board recognises the importance
of having a diverse Board in enhancing the effectiveness
and corporate governance of the Board. In determining the
composition of the Board, the Company considers the diversity
of the Board from a number of aspects including but not
limited to skills, industry knowledge and experience, education
background, age, gender, ethnicity and length of service. The
Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy and reviews from time and time and
recommends any revisions to the Board when necessary. During
the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Nomination Committee comprises of one executive
Director and two independent non-executive Directors and the
composition was as below:

Mr. Wang Jing (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Shengzhi (appointed with effect from 3 February 2020)
Mr. Zeng Guanwei (appointed with effect from 30 April 2019)
Mr. Song Wenke (resigned with effect from 3 February 2020)
Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny

(resigned with effect from 30 April 2019)

The members of the Nomination Committee met three times
during the year ended 31 March 2020. Work undertook by the

Nomination Committee during the reporting year included: -

o reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

o making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
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o assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
o reviewing and make recommendations to the Board on

re-election of retiring Directors; and

o reviewing and make recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors.

COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The attendance record of each committee members during the
year ended 31 March 2020 is shown as below:—

. FHEBIFMITES 2B

. BALREBRREEETAEERIRHES

R
« BRHERREAEFNEERRLEY
ZEEgE
BE-P-BF=A=+-ALFESZAER
ZHERGRIIMT -

Audit Remuneration

=
=

Nomination

Name of Directors BEEHA Committee Committee Committee
EREEE FTHEES REZEES®
Wang Jing T & N/A i A N/A 3 A 3/3
Tang Shengzhi (appointed with EAB(R-_Z-_ZTH_H
effect from 3 February 2020) —HEZMF) N/A TiE F N/A 38 B N/A g
Zeng Guanwei (appointed with BEHE(R_ZT—NFNA
effect from 30 April 2019) =T HEZE) 2/2 2/2 2/2
Wang Ping (resigned with effect FERZZE=ZZTFHA
from 7 May 2020) +HEHTE) 2/2 3/3 N/A 71 i A
Song Wenke (resigned with effect RXFRHR-_Z-_ZTF_H
from 3 February 2020) =ZHEE) 2/2 3/3 3/3
Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny (resigned HAH(RZE—NFEMEA
with effect from 30 April 2019) =+ HEE) N/A i R 1/1 1/1

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2020, Mr. Lam Wai Kei was the

DREME

RE-F-TE=AS+—AILEE  HEEEE
BAREZ AANE - MEEEEDEERT LD

company secretary of the Company. Mr. Lam Wai Kei has duly
complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no material changes to the Memorandum of
Association and Bye-laws for the year ended 31 March 2020.
An up-to-date version of the Company’'s Memorandum of
Association is available for inspection on both the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

MAIE3 2916 EBEEIFIIRE -

ABERXMH

HE_Z-_THF=-A=+—HILFE AHBEEX
ML ABARASMEERNEE - AARAMEREAM

RETAR A A OB SR e A A R U BB e

CERCZEER PHEELEEARLA

31



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRSE

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The number of senior management whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:—

BREEEHE
LTBG BEANSREEBARMT : —

Number of senior management

SREEEAH
Nil to HK$500,000 ZTZ500,000/% 7T
HK$500,000 — HK$1,000,000 500,000/ 7L £ 1,000,000 7T
Total Bt 2

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the total fee paid/
payable in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
the Group’s external auditors are set out below:—

P BB BN
BE-T-PF=A=+-BLEE BRAEE)
RS IED IR G M R MR PN 2 B
BEEHMT : -

Type of service R 7% dE A Fee paid/payable for the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+T-HBLEEXZNR ENLEHR

2020 2019

—E-EF —ZE-hEF
Audit services ZE R HK$800,000 HK$1,500,000
800,000/ 7T 1,500,000/ 7T
Non-audit services IEZEARTS (Note) (F3E) HK$90,000 N/A
90,0007 7T i A

Note: The amounts were paid to ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS" LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has taken out liability insurance to indemnify
its Directors and senior management for their liabilities arising
from the performance of their duties. The insurance coverage
is reviewed by the Company on an annual basis. No claim has
been made against the Directors and senior management of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2020.
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MGORS' D N
FOR PREPARING T ATEN

The management provides explanation and information to the
Board to facilitate an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for approval.
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
financial statements that give a true and fair view. Meanwhile,
the Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently; and
that judgments and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2020, the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the applicable
laws were complied with. The Board was not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might
cause significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as
going concern. The Board has prepared the financial statements
on a going concern basis. The reporting responsibilities of
external auditor of the Company are disclosed in “Independent
Auditor’s Report”.

NTS

e

BEEBREMBEREGBENTEERELA - 4
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INTERNAL CONTROL & RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The
system includes a defined management structure with limits
of authority, safeguards its assets against unauthorised use
of disposition, ensures the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or for publication, and ensures compliances
with relevant laws and regulations. The system is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage the risks of failure in the
Group's operational systems and in the achievement of the
Group’s objectives. The Company currently does not have an
internal audit function. The Board reviews the internal control
system and risk management from time to time and at least once
a year. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company
has conducted a review on the effectiveness towards the system
of internal controls, including risk management system and the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
made recommendations to follow up. The Company considered
the internal control and risk management systems effective and
adequate.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group established policies and procedures to handle and
disclose inside information in compliance with the requisite
inside information disclosure requirements as specified under the
Listing Rules. The policy and procedure are designed to ensure
that any material information which comes to the knowledge of
any one or more officers should be promptly identified, assessed
and escalated, where appropriate, for the attention of the Board.
The Board shall make timely decisions on disclosure, if necessary
and take appropriate measures to preserve confidentiality of
inside information until proper disclosure of inside information is
done.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy aims to ensure that the Board maintains
an appropriate procedure on declaring and recommending
the dividend payment of the Company. The Board endeavors
to strike a balance between the Shareholders’ interests and
prudent capital management with a sustainable dividend policy.
Payment of dividends shall be determined at the sole discretion
of the Board, except the final dividend shall be subjected to
Shareholders’ approval at general meeting. In proposing any
dividend payout, the Board will take into account, inter alia, the
financial results, cash flow, liquidity and capital requirements,
current and future business operations, conditions, cycle and
strategies of the Group and the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole. The Company’s distribution of dividends shall
also be subject to any restrictions under the 1989 Act and
the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws as well as all
applicable laws, rules and regulations. The dividend policy will
be reviewed from time to time. The dividend policy allows the
Board to declare special dividends from time to time in addition
to the interim and/or annual dividends. There is no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
given period.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATION

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with the Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is
disseminated to the Shareholders in a timely manner through a
number of formal channels, which include interim and annual
reports, announcements and circulars of the Company. The
general meetings of the Company are valuable forum for the
Board to communicate directly with the Shareholders. The
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the general meetings of
the Company. The 2019 AGM was held on 5 September 2019
and a special general meeting of the Company was held on 7
January 2020 (the “2019 SGM"). A notice convening the 2019
AGM was included in the circular dated 29 July 2019 and the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2019 were despatched to the Shareholders.
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A notice convening the 2019 SGM was included in the circular
dated 17 December 2019 were despatached to the Shareholders.

The Board attended the 2019 AGM and 2019 SGM to answer
questions from the Shareholders. The chairman of the meeting
of 2019 AGM and 2019 SGM explained detailed procedures
for conduction of a poll. All resolutions proposed at the 2019
AGM and 2019 SGM were passed separately by the Shareholders
by way of poll. The results of the poll were published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company after
the meetings. The Company is committed to enhancing
communications and relationships with its investors. Designated
senior management maintains an open dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Group’s
development. The Company has maintained a company website
(www.00485.hk) for the purpose of updating the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial information,
news and other data available to the public.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders are entitled to requisition a special general meeting
and put forward proposals at general meeting. Please refer to
the procedures as follows:

(A) Procedures for requisitioning a special general

meeting

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to
the Board or the company secretary signed and deposited
in accordance with the Bye-laws, Bermuda Companies Act
1981 (the “Companies Act”), require the Directors to call
a special general meeting for the transaction of business
specified in the requisition.
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(B) Procedure for putting forward proposals at general

meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right to
vote at general meetings of the Company or not less than
100 shareholders may, at their expense, provide a written
request to the attention of the company secretary signed
and deposited in accordance with the Companies Act.

Besides, the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are
posted on the website of the Company at www.00485.hk
and the designated website of the Stock Exchange at www.
hkexnews.hk.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests by post or
email to the Company:

Address: Suites 2602-2603, 26/F., Tower 1, The Harbourfront,
18 Tak Fung Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(with the Board of Directors as designated recipient)

Tel: +852 2286 0728

Fax: +852 2286 0727

Email: office@00485.hk

Shareholders must deposit or send (as the case may be) the
original of the duly signed written requisitions, notices or
statements or enquires to the above address, and provide their
full names, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.

CONCLUSION

The Company strongly believes that the quality and standard of
corporate governance reflects the quality of the management
and the operations of the Group’s business. Good corporate
governance can safeguard the proper use of funds and effective
allocation of resources and protect Shareholders’ interests. The
management wholeheartedly to advocate of the good practice
in corporate governance and will try our best to maintain,
strengthen and improve the standard and quality of the Group’s
corporate governance.
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- +852 2286 0728

BE - +852 2286 0727

T FEF : office@00485.hk
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The Group is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the "ESG Report”) for the year ended
31 March 2020. The ESG Report summarises the policies and
achievement made by the Group in corporate social responsibility

and sustainability development.

We believe that sustainability is crucial and important for the
Group's development and to achieve business excellence and
enhance capabilities for long-term competitiveness. The Group
will continue to strive a balance among business development,
environmental protection and social responsibility and to create
sustainable value for the Group and stakeholders.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did not
observe any material non-compliance on the applicable
environmental and social laws and regulations that has a
significant impact on the Group.

REPORTING SCOPE

This ESG Report covers the Group’'s businesses in properties
development, properties investment, properties management,
hydroelectric power and design and sales of electronic products
during the year ended 31 March 2020. For corporate governance
of the Group, please refer to the section headed “Corporate

Governance Report” of this annual report.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

This report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” of the Stock Exchange
set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. The ESG Report
provides a simplified overview on the environmental, social and

governance performance of the Group.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The information in the ESG Report is derived from the
integration and summary conducted by the management,
employees and external stakeholders in which the ESG report is
to assess and review the impacts towards the environment and
society arising from the operations of the Group as well as how
these operating practices are material to the Group’s business
operations and stakeholders. The communication channels for
review includes but not limited to employee trainings, corporate
website and customers’ feedback.

STAKEHOLDERS" ENGAGEMENT

We believe that good communication with the investors,
Shareholders, employees and other stakeholders is the
foundation for the Group to formulate its policies for sustainable
development. We attach great importance to the opinions of the
stakeholders and drive attentions and perform regular reviews
on those areas.

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our
environmental, social and governance approach and
performance. Please give your suggestions or share your views
with us via email at: office@00485.hk.

A. ENVIRONMENT

Sustainable development has been adopted as an
objective of the Group. The Group introduced a series
of environmental protection policies aiming to reduce
the energy consumption in daily operations and enhance
the efficiency on the use of resources and created an
environmentally friendly workplace for our employees. We
strictly comply with applicable local environmental related
laws and regulations, such as the Air Pollution Control
Ordinance, Waste Disposal Ordinance and the Public
Health and Municipal Services Ordinance in Hong Kong.
Throughout the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s
business did not have significant negative impacts on the
environment and natural resources.
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Emission

Based on the review during the reporting period, the
Group’'s business did not generate significant air,
greenhouse gas emissions or other air pollutants.
However, greenhouse gas emission was indirectly
generated from the consumption of electricity at the
workplaces in Hong Kong, the PRC, the USA and Canada,
vehicles and outbound business travels by the employees.
The electricity consumed by the Group at its offices
was approximately 197,000kWh (2019: 210,000kWh),
producing CO,e equivalent emissions of approximately
160,000kg during the year ended 31 March 2020
(31 March 2019: 259,000kg). In addition, the Group
purchased 1 motor vehicle for business use during the
year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil). Apart from this, all
employees were encouraged to use public transportation
for business travels and electronic methods (such as video
conference) to replace the overseas meetings.

In order to minimise air and greenhouse gas emissions
which are derived from the daily operations at offices
of the Group and striving to mitigate the damages and
risks to the environment, the Group promoted energy
conservation as part of its holistic approach towards
energy saving, such as encouraging its employees to
switch off idle lights and other electronic appliances, and
reduce the consumption of resources.

The discharge into water and land, generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste during the course of
operations was minimal. Non-hazardous waste produced
was mainly from office paper and other garbage from
daily operations while the hazardous waste was mainly
derived from used toner cartridge. During the reporting
period, the Group used a total of approximately 229,000
pieces of papers in its daily operations (2019: 323,000
pieces). The Group introduced various internal guidelines
to handle the wasted generated from daily operations of
the Group. Those non-hazardous waste and hazardous
waste were collected by the property management
company of the landlord and collected by suppliers
respectively, all were handled in an environmentally
acceptable manner. In addition, the Group encouraged its
employees to go paperless as much as possible.
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Use of Resources

The Group directly and indirectly consumes resources
such as water and electricity in the course of its daily
operations. In order to make full use of resources,
the Group has undertaken various measures to
demonstrate our efforts in efficient use of resources in
daily operations. Further, the Group believes that the
participation of its employees is also important for the
Group in the implementation of related policies. Hence,
the Group has strived to create a corporate culture of
resources saving and to enhance employees’ awareness of
environmental protection and energy saving.

To reduce paper consumption, the Group encouraged
its employees to reduce the usage of photocopies,
print double-sided for internal documents and external
documents, where appropriate, use electronic copies.
Recycle boxes and bins were placed at offices to
collect non-reusable paper and waste. The Group also
encouraged its employees to segregate non-recyclable and
recyclable waste and reuse and recycle the office supplies,
such as binders, file folders and papers. Furthermore, in
order to reduce waste and to recycle resources, suppliers
are regularly arranged to collect used printing cartridges
and toners for recycling purpose.

To reduce electricity consumption, the air-conditioners
installed at offices were maintained at room temperature
of 25.5 degree which could reduce the usage of excess
electricity. The Group also kept reminding the employees
to switch off the lights and air-conditioners when not in
use to lower the electricity consumption. In addition, the
Group encouraged the use of the most efficient travelling
method and set up video-conference and teleconference
facilities at offices to minimise unnecessary business
travels which may subsequently reduce greenhouse gas

emissions from air travels.

In respect of water consumption, the impact was minimal
and non-significant amount of water was wasted in the
daily business activities during the reporting period. The
cost of water consumption of the Group is inclusive in
the monthly rent and the building management does not
individually measure water consumptions of each tenant

hence no relevant data can be collected.
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We are committed to minimising the consumption of
packaging materials and to use environmentally friendly
materials as much as possible. Furthermore, in selecting
suppliers or cooperation partners, the Group takes into
consideration, among others, their environmental and
energy policies, to maximise environmental protection and

minimise pollution.

The Environmental and Natural Resources

The core business of the Group are confined to the office
workplaces, the impact towards to the environment and
natural resources arising from the Group’s business is not
significant. Apart from the internal efforts made by the
employees in regards to energy saving and environmental
protection, the Group also encouraged its business
partners to make good use of the resources and make
necessary protections to the environment.

The Group started to engage in properties development
business since the financial year of 2018. During the year
ended 31 March 2020, our business units worked closely
with the contractors and communicated clearly with
them about our concerns and requirements in respect of
environment protection through written specifications,
legal requirement and regular on-site checking.

Our business units and contractors also adopted various
approaches to manage the environment impacts of the
development projects. Environment considerations are
integrated in the planning, design, development and
execution of our projects. Our construction team further
seek for professional advices and proposals from experts
to eliminate the detrimental effect towards the soil and
ecosystem when necessary. In addition, we noticed that
noise and vibration are inevitably generated through the
use of machines when carrying out construction work,
but we strive to minimise disturbances to nearby residents
and establish a communication channel to address their
concerns.
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In addition, the Group has been supporting the
development in clean and renewable energy since 2016
and it has become one of the core business of the Group.
With reference to the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, the Group engaged in the
business of the renewable energy and operated two
hydroelectric power stations in the northern PRC during
the year ended 31 March 2020. The installed capacity
of the two hydroelectric power stations are 3,500kw
and 3,200kw respectively and those hydroelectric power
stations are connected to the national power grid which
support the industrial use.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the two
hydroelectric power stations generated a total of
electricity of approximately 11,339,000kw (2019:
16,500,000kw), eliminated CO,e equivalent emissions of
approximately 11,300 tonnes (2019: 16,450 tonnes).

SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes that employees are the most important
asset of the Group. During the reporting period, the
Group complied with all relevant laws, regulations and
rules related to compensation, dismissal, recruitment
and promotion to protect the rights and benefits of the
employees.

Moreover, the Group offers remuneration packages
at a competitive level and reviews them on a regular
basis in order to recruit and retain the employees. The
employees’ remuneration, promotion, salary increments
and discretionary bonus are assessed based on both
individual’s and the Group’s performance, professional and
working experience and by reference to prevailing market
practice and standards. The Group also promotes equal
opportunity for employees towards gender, race, religion,
age, disability, sexual orientation, nationality, political
opinion, or social or ethnic origin. No employee is allowed
to be subject to any form of discrimination on recruitment,
training development and career development. During
the reporting period, the Group did not come to any
material non-compliance case that constituted violation of

employment related laws and regulations.
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As at 31 March 2020, the Group had total of 25
employees (2019:60). The table below shows the
workforce distribution by gender, age group and
geographical regions:—

R-T-TE=R=1—0 A£EEEL
HISEEEB(ZF—NEF : 608) - FXII
RIRMR] - FR B SHSHHHEE
-

No. of staff
EI¥H
Gender MR
Male S 20
Female 158 5
Age Group i
18-30 18£305% 2
31-50 31&505% 22
Over 50 505% A £ 1
Geographical Regions Hb [
Hong Kong £ 3
The PRC ==y 22

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working
environment for all employees and believes that it can
enhance their sense of belonging and productivity. The
Group requires all departments in different regions to
strictly follow relevant laws and regulations in relation
to safe working environment and protection for
occupational hazards, such as the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance in Hong Kong and Work Safety
Law of the PRC. The Group has complied with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
it relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
Workplaces are properly designed with emergency exits
and first aid facilities are installed. In addition, the Group
also provided with occupational safety training to our
employee to enhance their safety awareness. During the
year ended 31 March 2020, there was no work-related
fatalities (2019: Nil).
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The Group conceives that‘ training plays an important
role for personal development, work efficiency and
productivity. The Group encourages its employees to
participate in different training programs to improve
knowledge and skills for discharging duties at
work. During the reporting period, employee, senior
management and Directors engaged in different training
programs provided by the government, nonprofit statutory
or professional bodies and professional education centers.

Labour Standards

The Group complies with the relevant labour laws,
regulations and rules in its operating regions, including
Hong Kong, the PRC, Canada and the USA. In our
offices located in Hong Kong, we comply with, in all
material respects, the following relevant codes of practice
and ordinances during the process of employment,
remuneration, promotion and termination: the Hong
Kong Sex Discrimination Ordinance issued by the Equal
Opportunities Commission, Disability Discrimination
Ordinance, Family Status Discrimination Ordinance and
Race Discrimination Ordinance and the Employment
Ordinance. In order to prevent child and forced labour,
the Group conducts background checks, such as age,
academic qualification, previous job references, so as to
ensure the employees meet the minimum age standard
and applicable laws in those designated regions. During
the reporting period, the Group did not discover any
employment of child labour nor any violation against the
relevant laws and regulations related to forced labour.
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Supply Chain Management

To maintain the quantity as well as the quality of our
products and to manage environment and social risks of
supply chain, the Group emphasises on the selection of
suppliers and maintains an approved list of the suppliers
in which the admission is subject to the assessment of
their background, quality and quantity of the products,
time management, prices and response to suggestions
and customers’ feedback. Moreover, the management
team reviews and updates the list from time to time.
Regular meetings are arranged between suppliers and
management team for the improvement of products
and review on customers’ feedback. With long-term
relationships with various of suppliers, we also share
our vision, commitment to quality and business ethics to
them.

Product Responsibility

The Group strictly follows the applicable and relevant laws
and regulations related to products standards, advertising,
quality control and labeling. In addition, it also requires
its suppliers to comply with the same standard as well
as other applicable laws and regulations in respect of
product safety, quality control, measurement and labeling.

Furthermore, efforts have been made to enhance
the attentions of our suppliers and clients regarding
environmental protection and energy conservation.
We have engaged in the sales of electronic products
during the reporting period. We have set up policies and
procedures to ensure our electronic products, such as
karaoke machines, meet the safety standards imposed in
various national, state, local, and provincial jurisdictions.
Our karaoke machines sold in the USA are designed,
manufactured and tested to meet the safety standards
of Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. (“ULE") or Electronic
Testing Laboratories (“ETL").
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In Europe and other foreign countries, our products
are manufactured to meet the Consumer Electronics
("CE") marking requirements. CE marking is a mandatory
European product marking and certification system for
certain designated products. When affixed to a product
and product packaging, CE marking indicates that a
particular product complies with all applicable European
product safety, health and environmental requirements
within the CE marking system. Products complying with
CE marking are now accepted to be safe in 28 European
countries. However, ULE or ETL certification does not
mean that a product complies with the product safety,
health and environmental regulations contained in all
fifty states in the USA. Therefore, the Group maintains
a quality control program designed to ensure the
compliance with all applicable USA and federal laws
pertaining to the sale of our products.

Returns of Goods

For the Group’s business in the design and sales of
electronic products, we allow the return of electronic
hardware and music products by customers due to
damages and incorrect shipments. The Group allows
customers to get the refund by returning goods in new
condition and with all original parts. In addition, the
Group also offer a 90-day manufacturer’s warranty to its
customers for replacement of the goods.

Trademarks and Patents

We believe that trademarks are a significant asset of
the Group as they provide product recognition. We
have applied and obtained registered trademarks for
the subsidiaries of the Group in Hong Kong, Australia,
the USA and Europe. We further granted trademark
protection in the PRC by the China Trademark Office for
our Singing Machine brands in November 2019. Also, we
obtained two USA design patents for karaoke machines in
2013.
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Copyrights and Licenses

In respect of the business in the design and sales of
electronic products of the Group, we offer karaoke music
through our Singing Machine Karaoke Download Store,
Community, and iPhone/iPad App through a partnership
with Stingray Digital Group (“Stingray”). Stingray holds
all licensing agreements directly with the music publishers
and is responsible for all royalty payments. Stingray is the
leading multi-platform music service provider in the world,
with an estimated 110 million Pay-TV subscribers in 111
countries around the world. Geared towards individuals
and businesses alike, the company’s commercial entities
include leading digital music and video services Stingray
Music, Concert TV and The KARAOKE Channel.

The Group will take necessary and appropriate actions to
protect intellectual property rights.

Personal Data Protection

Regarding personal data protection and privacy, the
Group complies with applicable laws and regulations,
such as the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance in Hong
Kong. Relevant rules and guidelines are also set out in
the employment contracts so as to ensure compliance.

Anti-corruption

Integrity, ethics, fairness and honesty are the core values
of the Group. The Group formulated policies against
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, such
as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong.
Whistle-blowing policy is also in place as a private and
confidential communication channel for all stakeholders
to report suspected misconduct or fraudulent activities to
the management of the Company. Ongoing review of the
effectiveness of the internal control systems is conducted
on a regular basis in preventing the occurrence of
corruption activities. For the year ended 31 March 2020,
there was no concluded legal case regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees
during the reporting period (2019: Nil).
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e to support th

in charity activities and fund-raising events and making
donations to non-profit organisation. In addition, the
Group also makes donations and contributes goods to
local charities, churches and to programs sponsored by
some of our major customers.
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The Directors present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
principal subsidiaries are engaged in properties development,
properties investment, properties management and operation
and management of hydroelectric power stations during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31
March 2020, which includes an analysis of the Group’s financial
performance, particulars of important events affecting the Group
during the reporting year as well as discussion on the Group's
future business development are provided in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

The objectives and policies of the capital risk management and
financial risk management of the Group are set out in notes 5
and 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Discussion on the Group’s environmental issues, policies and
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the Company and the Group’s key
relationships with its employees, customers and suppliers that
have significant impact on the Company are provided in the
section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE AND LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group established procedures and policies to ensure its
operations comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations
and that those policies and practices are regularly reviewed
for adequacy. Furthermore, senior management is delegated
with continuing responsibility to monitor compliance with all
significant legal and regulatory requirements.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, as far as it is aware, the

Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on its business and operations.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 74 to 75. The Directors have
determined that no dividends will be paid in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of principal properties held for sale, properties for sale
under development and properties held for investment purposes
are set out in notes 24, 23 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements and paragraph headed “Business Review — Properties
Development” in Management Discussion and Analysis of this
annual report.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 March 2020
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

There is no reserve available for distribution to Shareholders as
at 31 March 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
and there was no restriction against such rights under the laws
of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 192 of
this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2020, neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has a Scheme which was approved and adopted at
the special general meeting of the Company held on 15 January
2008 for a period of 10 years. With reference to the composite
offer and response document dated 30 June 2014 jointly issued
by Achieve Prosper Capital Limited and Starlight International
Holdings Limited (currently named as “China Sinostar Group
Company Limited”) (the “Composite Document”) in respect of
the mandatory unconditional cash offers by Kingston Securities
Limited, on behalf of the Achieve Prosper Capital Limited, to
acquire all the issued shares (other than those already owned
and agreed to be acquired by the Achieve Prosper Capital
Limited and parties acting in concert with it), and to cancel all
outstanding shares options of the Company. From 21 July 2014
onward, being the latest time and date for acceptance of the
Listco Offers (as defined in the Composite Document), no shares
options were granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company

under the Scheme. The Scheme expired on 15 January 2018.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to
the date of this Directors’ Report were:

Executive Directors

Wang Jing (Chairman)

Wang Xing Qiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Zhao Shuang

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Su Bo (appointed with effect from 7 May 2020)

Tang Shengzhi (appointed with effect from 3 February 2020)
Zeng Guanwei (appointed with effect from 30 April 2019)

Wang Ping (resigned with effect from 7 May 2020)

Song Wenke (resigned with effect from 3 February 2020)

Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny (resigned with effect from 30 April 2019)
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"'Pursuant to Code P r oct
to retirement by rotation at the subsequent annual general
meetings of the Company at least once every three years,
provided that, the retired Directors, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS

The Company or its subsidiaries have entered into a number of
transactions with entities in which the former executive Directors
have substantial shareholding. Details of those transactions are
set out in the paragraphs headed “Connected Transaction” in
this Directors’ Report. Save as disclosed above, no transactions,
arrangements and contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s business, to which the Company, any of its controlling
entities or its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director
had a material interest, directly or indirectly, subsisted during or
at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares and
share options of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance in Hong Kong (the “SFO") which are required (a) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and

the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(i) Long Position in the shares

Long Position/

EERFETBRAEREAQAHIAR
RANEMIERAEEREMEAE
BEiE KRS - HBEROKREERE
ZEBER/ KR

e ZK’“ﬁR%%i‘IE

THRAE B %I(I%ﬁ%%

KERE GBI 3 Eﬂ Bl 1) EXVER) 2 Bt K

ﬁﬁﬂﬂfiqﬂﬁﬁﬁ( iz Tﬁ%%&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬂ%xvﬁ&%7
K85 &l 2 M E AT AN R R Hh AP 2 #E w Bk

B (BERES ‘%&Hﬁ B2 EX AR RER

BAZEDZIXR)  ROREFLHRPEHEIE
352 R ARER AR T*E}T‘“E% 1 3 Zi‘aaﬂﬂz
R FORRE - H(ORIER #Q'J/,\%D@$

Rz EmPORRIOT

(i) REGBZRE

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital in the

Name of Directors Short Position Capacity shares held Company
EARDREET

EEHE RBR/%KR =37 BRHE BRAZBHNBEIL

Executive Director

HITES

Wang Jing Long Position Interest of controlled 2,171,827,290 51.02%
corporation (Note)

T & =B MEEGER 2 (P 7E)

Wang Xing Qiao Long Position Beneficial Owner 3,275,000 0.08%

TES RE ERBEAA

Independent Non-executive

Director
BYFHITES
Zeng Guanwei Long Position Beneficial Owner 5,510,000 0.13%

KB

EL:E

BEamEBAA
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Note: These 2,171,827,290 shares of the Company are held
by Achieve Prosper Capital Limited, a company wholly
and beneficially owned by Hong Kong Shihua Holdings
Limited, which is in turn wholly and beneficially owned
by Liaoning Shihua. Mr. Wang Jing is the sole director
and beneficial owner of 82.8% of the equity interest in
Liaoning Shihua. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wang Jing is
deemed to be interested in these 2,171,827,290 shares of

the Company.

Directors’ interests in the shares of associated

corporations

(ii)

Wt : ANARZF2,171,827,2900% B 15 fiE &8
BRERAR(—HEEAEELERER
ARIZERESBEANARDEE  ME
BEEERERAABEEEERER
Emif TRLEREEEE K-
EEVHHS28%WEZEZHEEAA °
REEFLFRBERD  TREERRA
RARRZE2,171,827,290/% 8 15 7 #
B o

EEREBREE RO 2ES

Approximate
percentage
of issued

Number of  share capital

ordinary shares in Achieve
in Achiever Prosper
Name of associated Name of Long Position/ Prosper Capital
corporation Director Capacity Short Position Capital Limited Limited
IEERERER
RERERFRA QFAEBITRAE
HEEE EE EEpE 14 RR/%=& AZEBREE ZHMAOBEDE
Achieve Prosper Wang Jing Interest of Long Position 1,000,000 100%
Capital Limited controlled
corporation
ERERBRAT T& REEZERZEE 2 KB
Eam

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee
shares in subsidiaries held by Directors in trust for the
Company or its subsidiaries, as at the date of this annual
report, none of the Directors, chief executive of the
Company nor their associates had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO) as notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

BREXFRBEREERARASEME R
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended 31
March 2020.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate sale attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and five largest customers accounted for 47% and 57%
respectively of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended
31 March 2020. The aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier and five largest suppliers accounted
for 59% and 87% respectively of the Group’s total purchases
for the year ended 31 March 2020. None of the Directors,
their associates, or any shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’'s share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2020, the following persons, other than
the interest disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors
and chief executive’s interests and/or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any specified undertaking of the Company or any other
associated corporation”, had 5% or more interest in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company have notified to the
Company and have been recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions required to
be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:
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Aggregate
Number of percentage of
shares and issued share
underlying capital as at
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest shares 31 March 2020
e
—EIEF
=S ESap=l=
2EITRAE
BREEREHE ERME R RAEERGEEB ZBEDL
Achieve Prosper Capital Limited Beneficial Owner 2,171,827,290 51.02%
FEERERNGRAF EREEA
Hong Kong Shihua Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 2,171,827,290 51.02%
ERBEERERRD MR EHEE 2 s
Liaoning Shihua Interest of controlled corporation 2,171,827,290 51.02%
BREEE MEEHNER 2 S
Hu Bao Qin spouse interest 2,171,827,290 51.02%
HEE B s
Lushan Investment Holding Limited Person having a security interest 2,917,914,246 68.55%
(Note) in shares
Lushan Investment Holding Limited (Fi#F) #ARMDEFEEREZAL
China Huarong Asset Management Interest of controlled corporation 2,917,914,246 68.55%
0., Ltd (Note)
PREERMEETRRMNARDA (M) MNEEREE 2 Em
China Huarong International Holdings Interest of controlled corporation 2,917,914,246 68.55%
Ltd (Note)
Hh B 2 il B R PR R PR A A (B &) MNEEREE 2 s
Chu Xue Feng Beneficial Owner 280,000,000 6.58%

e

BEaEHAA

Note: These 2,917,914,246 Shares are held by Lushan Investment  [ff
Holding Limited, a company wholly and beneficially owned by

R

7%%2,917,914,246 A% 5 A Lushan Investment
Holding Limited (—fE 4 B =g ER R AR

China Huarong International Holdings Ltd.

As at 31 March 2020, Achieve Prosper Capital Limited is wholly
and beneficially owned by Hong Kong Shihua Holdings Limited,
which is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Liaoning
Shihua. Mr. Wang Jing is the sole director of and the beneficial
owner of 82.8% of the equity interest in Liaoning Shihua. By
virtue of the SFO, Hong Kong Shihua Holdings Limited, Liaoning
Shihua, Mr. Wang Jing and Ms. Hu Bao Qin, the spouse of
Mr. Wang Jing, were deemed to be interested in the said
2,171,827,290 Shares held by Achieve Prosper Capital Limited.

REAZANRBERBANABREE

RIEZTF=A=+—H EXEFXEBRIFMH
BEBEEERERARZERERES  MEEE
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On 30 December 2015, Achieve Prosper Capital Limited
transferred the 326,086,956 underlying shares of the Company
which are conversion shares of the Company and are issuable
upon the exercise of the convertible bonds to Lushan Investment
Holding Limited. During the year ended 31 March 2018,
the convertible bonds were fully converted and a total of
326,086,956 conversion shares of the Company were allotted
and issued, credited as fully paid to Lushan Investment Holding
Limited.

On 14 March 2016, Achieve Prosper Capital Limited entered
into a share charge with Lushan Investment Holding Limited,
pursuant to which Achieve Prosper Capital Limited has pledged
2,171,827,290 Shares in favour of Lushan Investment Holding
Limited. In addition, further 420,000,000 Shares held by Achieve
Prosper Capital Limited was transferred to Lushan Investment
Holding Limited pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement
entered by Achieve Prosper Capital Limited and Lushan
Investment Holding Limited (please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 16 March 2016 for further details).
China Huarong International Holdings Ltd owns 100% of Lushan
Investment Holding Limited, which is owned as to 88.1% by
Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd, which is in turn wholly-owned
by China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. By virtue of
the SFO, both China Huarong International Holdings Ltd and
China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd are deemed to
be interested in the 2,917,914,246 Shares held by Lushan
Investment Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
recorded no other interests, short positions or long positions in
shares of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2020, the
Group had the following non-exempted continuing connected
transaction within the meaning of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules:
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A R)E $£326,086,956 A3 # # A% 15 LA A BRZI R AR
27 A B3 KX 31T FLushan Investment Holding
Limited °

RZE—AFZA+MNABE FEEXERQIAED
# | ushan Investment Holding Limited&] 3 f% 1%
R Bt EREAFRAAHK2,171,827,290
B B% 9 & ¥ FlLushan Investment Holding
Limited ° tt5) - RIFZXREAFR AR ELushan
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Framework Purchase Agreement

On 30 June 2014, SIH Limited (the “Privateco”) and Treasure
Green Holdings Limited (a subsidiary of the Company) entered
into a framework purchase agreement (the “Framework
Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which the Privateco and
its subsidiaries (the “Privateco Group”) sold and the Company
and the remaining subsidiaries upon completion of the group
restructuring as detailed in the announcement of the Company
dated 21 March 2014 and the distribution in specie and the
creditors’ scheme becoming effective (the “Remaining Group”)
purchased certain electronic products in accordance with the
terms of the Framework Purchase Agreement. The relevant
members of the Remaining Group and the Privateco Group
would from time to time enter into individual agreements in
respect of the sale and purchase of the relevant electronic
products. The initial term of the Framework Purchase Agreement
commenced from the date of completion of the distribution in
specie (i.e. 30 June 2014) up to and including 31 March 2015.
For further information, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 30 June 2014 and the circular of the Company
dated 24 May 2014.

Since the expiration of the term of the Framework Purchase
Agreement on 1 April 2015, sale and purchase of electronic
products have been continuing among the Privateco Group and
the Remaining Group on the same terms of the Framework
Purchase Agreement. The Privateco Group and the Remaining
Group entered into another framework purchase agreement (the
“2nd Framework Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Privateco Group sold and the Remaining Group purchased certain
electronic products from time to time for a term commencing
from 21 July 2015 and ending on 31 March 2018 on 16
September 2015. According to the 2nd Framework Purchase
Agreement, the annual caps in respect of the sale of electronic
products by the Privateco Group to the Remaining Group should
not exceed (i) HK$56,000,000 during the period from 21 July
2015 to 31 March 2016; (ii) HK$80,000,000 during the period
from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017; and (iii) HK$95,000,000
during the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018.

BEERDGS

RZZ—MEA=TH " SIH Limited ([FAAR
7)) EaTreasure Green Holdings Limited (ZN2 ]
ZIBRRDII L —mBEERRGR(BEERR
=1 Bt RARAIREWBAR(TRRARRE
B DHEERARBIRABTHBLR (R TEE DR
SEEA(FRARARRBHR-_Z—HNE=A=
T—AZRE)REMHIRTHKIAREEAGTE £
W REBEEERECGRRBEETEFEMD -
BRTEBERLARREEZHEXERRTRRE
BERAETEMI L EBWHR - BEERGE Y
FHREEEW D IR B RN T —HFERHA
=ETEIREE_ZE-—RAFE=ZA=T—RH(BE%
H)lL- BEE—FEHR  FL2HEARFHHERZ
E-—MFRA=ZFTHZRAERARGIBRR T —
MERA - +HHZEH -

EREERMEHRERN-_Z—AFNOAE—AERA
% RARARSEHEKTEE HBE#TNET
EmBEE —HERBEELRG R ZERIETET - R
ZE-RFNATARE  RARESEEHEBTE
EiTvus—WEERERBETE_NEEERD
ZD B RZZE—RFEtAZ+—HRBREZ
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BREREGZE  RARTEERBTEEEES

ERFELrROR_ZE—AFLtA=Z+—HZ=Z
—~NF=ZA=+—H1T15##856,000,000% T :
(IVWZZE—AR"FNA—HE-_ZT—+tF=A=+
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On 9 March 2016, the Privateco and Remaining Group entered
into a supplemental agreement to amend the terms of the
2nd Framework Purchase Agreement. As such, apart from the
annual cap of the transactions contemplated under the 2nd
Framework Purchase Agreement for the period from 21 July
2015 to 31 March 2016 was increased from HK$56,000,000 to
HK$57,000,000, other terms of the 2nd Framework Purchase
Agreement remain unchanged.

As the 2nd Framework Purchase Agreement expired on 31 March
2018, the Privateco and the Remaining Group entered into
another framework purchase agreement (the “3rd Framework
Purchase Agreement”) on 29 March 2018. Pursuant to the 3rd
Framework Purchase Agreement, the annual cap in respect of
the sale and purchase of the electronic products should not
exceed HK$18,000,000 during the period from 1 April 2018
to 31 March 2019. All other terms and conditions remain
unchanged.

The Group sought to source electronic products from suppliers
which are independent third parties to replace the Privateco
Group and, thus, the actual transaction amount in respect
of sale of electronic products by the Privateco Group to the
Remaining Group has been reduced over the years. However, the
Group has not been able to identify suppliers of certain existing
models of electronic products so it continued to purchase certain
existing models of electronic products from the Privateco Group
in meeting demands from customers. Hence, the Remaining
Group and Privateco entered into another framework purchase
agreement (the “4th Framework Purchase Agreement”) on
28 March 2019, pursuant to which the Privateco Group will
sell and the Remaining Group will purchase certain electronic
products from time to time for a term commencing from 1
April 2019 and ending on 31 March 2020. Pursuant to the
4th Framework Purchase Agreement, the annual cap in respect
of the sale and purchase of the electronic products shall not
exceed HK$18,000,000 during the period from 1 April 2019
to 31 March 2020. For further information, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 March 2019.
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The transactions contemplated under the 4th Framework
Purchase Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules by virtue of the Privateco Group being an associate of the
Resigned Directors and thus a connected person of the Company
at the subsidiary level as at the date of the 4th Framework
Purchase Agreement. Given (1) the Board has approved
transactions contemplated under the 4th Framework Purchase
Agreement; and (2) the Directors (including all the independent
non-executive Directors) confirmed that the terms of the 4th
Framework Purchase Agreement are fair and reasonable, and
that the 4th Framework Purchase Agreement are on normal
commercial terms and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole, the 4th Framework Purchase
Agreement is subject to the announcement requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but is exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing
Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the
transactions contemplated under the 4th Framework Purchase
Agreement for the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in the
table below:

HRNEONBEEERBZEAS  LARRAKER
HEEENHEA  AMARARRHNERREE
MBEALT  RtFEMOBEERGHER NHRET
ZRGBRARBNRETRAUNEI4ARIR T 2158
MERS - -ER(NESREHAESTOOBREER
BERBRTHETZRS RQQOES(EREE2ES
UEHMITER)ERENNEEERRE 2 GRB
AFEE - BEMDBEERBGRR —RAEAXGK
VY NARARRRROEENZ - BiEmp
BEERBIRAETLTRAUNEMARETZAE
BT ERE T ARRE14A 10 1EEE % I3 WK
(BREBYIMBER) RIRRAEZRE -

FOMBEERBZRATHETZIIIMNBE_F
TEREZAZTRALFEZFELRRERRS
THEHEN TR

Annual Cap (for the
period from
1 April 2019 to

Amount 31 March 2020)
FELER(ZE-IEF
MA—HE-Z-ZF
©¥ ZA=+-—H1LHHE)
HK$000 HK$000
FAT FET
Purchase of electronic products from SIH ESIH Limited R M E A TEE
Limited and its subsidiaries (Note) BFEMME) 7,013 18,000

Note: Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip is a director of SIH Limited, who is also
a director of a subsidiary of the Company during the year ended

31 March 2020.
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The amount of above transactions did not exceed the
corresponding annual cap for the period from 1 April 2019 to
31 March 2020 as announced by the Company. Pursuant to Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged Mazars
CPA Limited (“Mazars”), the auditor of the Company, to review
the Group’s continuing connected transactions entered into by
the Company and its subsidiaries for the period from 1 April
2019 to 31 March 2020 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mazars has issued an unqualified letter containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions during the period from 1 April 2019 to
31 March 2020 disclosed above by the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and a copy of which has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange. The conclusion
contained in such letter is set out below:

a) nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

b) nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the transactions were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

) with respect to the aggregate amount of the continuing
connected transaction set out above, nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

62 China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

LR SENRBRBARAFTAB T —NFNA
—BAE-T-TF=-A=+—BHHRZEEFE L
R BB EMMRAE14A 5615 0 RAFE IS
ERR(BB)STMEBEABERAR(FERIIR])
RARRZEE - ARBEEESTMASHONE
BERZFERIEENF 30005 FXKERMBEY
BEMMINZ ZBZE I RBEEBHBEFET405%
[BAR B T 35 BRI P 15 48 38 22 5 B0 1% SR £
] BAEER-_Z-—NFHNA—BE_ZT-F
FZA=T—HHENBERER S (BAAFH
HMB ARG )ETER - AERRERE L™
RAIE14ASKBELERBERRMNG  EPHE
HUAEEAR EXABEBRBR-_Z—NAFHNA—HZE
—E-TFE-ACT - HPMZBERER S 2%
BRERARZELE—HEA  BAEAARRREE
BT o BRARGATEARET -

a) BEFRENEESBRSHEMRESSE
FEXFUARBEZRILAE

b) BEFRIMNEEERREFHEAEIIN
FIBER DAL EREREZER 5 21
WEEET &

0 PEABEMERSINEEREMS - BEE
REMNFEERRSAEMEEFARER
SBEARARRENFE LR -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERBEE

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
transactions and the aforesaid Auditor’s letter and confirmed
that the continuing connected transactions have been entered

into:

a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
b) on normal commercial terms; and

) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing

such transaction on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

With reference to the section headed “Disposal of Harvest Way
Holdings Limited”, the Group ceased to engage in the business
of design and sale of electronic products and securities trading
since the completion of the Disposal which had taken place on
13 January 2020 and no further connected transactions had

been conducted after 13 January 2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company, and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float not less than
25% of Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

According to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified
out of the funds of the Company against all liabilities incurred
by him as a Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil
or criminal, in which judgment is given in favour, or in which
he is acquitted, or in connection with any application under the
Companies Act in which relief from liability is granted to him by

the court.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the financial year
and up to the date of this Directors’ Report, there was or is,
any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit
of any of the Directors (whether made by the Company or

otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the Company).
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ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPEND

The Company has received the annual confirmation of

ARARERERBIL

independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered all independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.

CHANGE OF AUDITOR

With reference to the announcement of the Company dated
18 May 2020, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited resigned as the
auditor of the Group with effect from 15 May 2020 and Mazars
CPA Limited was appointed as the Group’s auditor to fill the
casual vacancy following the resignation of ZHONGHUI ANDA
CPA Limited with effect from 18 May 2020.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
have been audited by Mazars CPA Limited who will retire
and, be eligible to offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jing
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
24 July 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR E

BEMAZARS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA SINOSTAR GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Sinostar Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 74 to 191, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2020, and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Mazars CPA LIMITED

A RIR (U ) @t 5 4 A
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

T VR A VA 1 1 8 9% PP IR SR By 424

Tel 7 &% (852) 2909 5555

Faxf# H.: (852) 2810 0032

Email & #:info@mazars.hk
Website4d1i:www.mazars.hk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHMEE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of

the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our

audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

(i) Impairment assessment of trade receivables

Refer to Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had trade receivables
of HK$24,899,000.

Management has performed impairment assessment
of trade receivables which is mainly based on
management’s estimate of the life time expected credit
losses by taking into account the credit loss experience,
ageing of trade receivables, debtors’ repayment history
and financial position and an assessment of current and
forecast general economic conditions.

We have identified the impairment assessment of
trade receivables as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements
and the estimation of expected credit losses involve
significant judgement made by the management.
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Our key procedures, among others, included:

- Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting
credit limits and credit periods to customers;

- Assessing the reasonableness of management’s
loss allowance estimates on trade receivables
by examining the information used by the
management to form such judgements, including
testing the accuracy of the historical default
data, evaluating whether the historical loss rates
are appropriately adjusted based on current
conditions and forward-looking information and
examining the actual losses recorded during the

current financial year;

- Assessing whether the items in the trade
receivables ageing report were classified within
the appropriate ageing bracket; and

- Assessing creditworthiness of the customers
and checking subsequent settlements from the

customers.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHMEE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT'D)

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

(ii) NRV of properties held for sale and properties for sale under development

Refer to Notes 23 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had properties held
for sale and properties for sale under development
amounting to HK$142,958,000 and HK$36,312,000
respectively, which together accounted for 49% of the
Group’s total assets and are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value (“NRV").

The NRV of properties held for sale is estimated by the
management with reference to the estimated selling
prices of properties less estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in selling the properties.
The NRV of properties for sale under development is
assessed with reference to valuations carried out by an
independent professional valuer engaged by the Group.

We have identified the assessment of NRV of the
Group’s properties held for sale and properties for
sale under development as a key audit matter because
of their significance to the consolidated financial
statements and significant estimation and judgement
involved in the estimation of the NRV.
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Our key procedures, among others, included:

- Conducting site visits to property development

sites, on sample basis, and discussing with
management the progress and development
budgets reflected in the NRV calculation for each
of those property development projects;

- Obtaining the NRV calculations prepared

by management and discussing with those
individuals who prepared the calculations for an
understanding of the basis and key input data
used in the NRV calculations;

- Assessing the appropriateness of the estimated

selling prices of the properties held for sale
used by the management, on sample basis, with
reference to the latest market prices of the same
projects;

- Re-performing the calculations made by

management in arriving at the year-end
assessments of NRV on a sample basis;

- Reviewing the valuation from the valuer and

discussing with management and the valuer to
understand the valuation basis and methodology
used, and underlying assumptions;

- Evaluating the competence, capability and

objectivity of the valuer; and

- Considering the relevance and reasonableness

of key assumptions and methods used, and the
relevance and accuracy of the source data used.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHMEE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process. The audit committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHARE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHMEE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONT’'D)

We also provide those charged with governance with a

statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24 July 2020

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is:

Yip Ngai Shing

Practising Certificate number: P0O5163
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GFRBREREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
B E FHExT FHET
(re-presented)
(fe&75)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FEREER
Revenue U &5 8 71,177 168,783
Cost of sales THE KA (48,827) (132,896)
Gross profit ER 22,350 35,887
Other gain and loss Hib Wz K Eia 10 149 48
Administrative expenses THF X (41,499) (24,278)
Finance costs B SRR 11 (3,077) (2,466)
(LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM REFELEER 2BRBLAT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (E18)EF) 12 (22,077) 9,191
Income tax expenses FriS R X 14 (2,617) (7,607)
(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM S EREAFELLEEL >
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (B8 )EF (24,694) 1,584
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS R IREER
Loss for the year from discontinued FERAERIEREER 2EE
operations 18 (4,533) (13,308)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEEA (29,227) (11,724)
Other comprehensive loss: Hib 2 HEEE -
Continuing operations BESEER
Items that are reclassified or may be BEREN BN EENSEE
reclassified subsequently to profit or BmIER ¢
loss:
Exchange difference arising on BREBFINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations b =58
- Translation —HBHE (25,454) (20,977)
Discontinued operations BRILEEEK
Items that are reclassified or may be BEE P REE D EEEm s THE ¢
reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:
Exchange difference arising on HMEBINEBEECERZE
translation of foreign operations
- Translation — e 916 1,406
- Reclassification adjustments upon —HENBARENDE
disposal of subsidiaries T 18 (13,922) -
Other comprehensive (loss) income for FEKBERIELEEL 2 HM
the year from discontinued operations 2E(BR) Kk (13,006) 1,406
Other comprehensive loss for the year FEKBFERDKIELEEY
from continuing and discontinued ZEMEEER
operations (38,460) (19,571)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FE2 HEEBHZLE (67,687) (31,295)
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2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
gz FET FAET
(re-presented)
(E7))
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF A TEHE AFELEE :
THE COMPANY:
(Loss) Profit from continuing REFELLERK 2 (EER)
operations i A (24,694) 1,584
Loss from discontinued operations REDKRIEEEEB 2 EE (420) (15,533)
(25,114) (13,949)
(LOSS) PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO IEIZ R R IEAE (BB )T
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS:
(Loss) Profit from discontinued RECRIEEEER 2 (BE)
operations S ) (4,113) 2,225
(29,227) (11,724)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS TIHATEEZEBELLE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company EINNESIEF =N (63,574) (33,638)
Non-controlling interests FEE IR = (4,113) 2,343
(67,687) (31,295)
HK cent HK cent
AL gl
(re-presented)
(&=&75)
(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE AABHEEAEMER(EE)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE &l :
COMPANY: 16
Basic and diluted ERREE
From continuing and discontinued REFERDRIEELER
operations (0.59) (0.35)
From continuing operations KEFEKREER (0.58) 0.04
From discontinued operations TEDEIEEEER (0.01) (0.39)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE M EIRR R

As at 31 March 2020
REZZF-FTF=A=1—H

2020 2019
—EDERF —E-hEF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
Pt E FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investment properties HEYE 19 19,760 21,126
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MRE 20 41,482 53,295
Right-of-use assets EREEE 21 40,054 -
Prepaid land lease payments FET T E IR 21 = 42,146
Goodwill [EES - 8,512
Interest in an associate /N o - 3,524
Deferred tax assets BELERIBEAE 30 - 5,980
101,296 134,583
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories PN - 50,309
Trade receivables, deposits and other B S5EWFIE « 24 N HM
receivables & Ug FR T8 22 74,011 123,580
Properties for sale under development ZRPFEME 23 36,312 -
Properties held for sale BELEZME 24 142,958 201,524
Financial assets at fair value through EATEFAEBRZEREE
profit or loss - 187
Amount due from a related company fE W — R A B N B FIB - 6
Bank balances and cash WITHBR KRR 13,808 75,480
267,089 451,086
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEBEE
Amount due to a director B — R EEHIE 26 205 58
Amount due to immediate holding JER EEIEIR A AR08
company 26 698 33,050
Amounts due to related companies JE 1< BA Bt A R 5RIE 26 66 29,738
Trade payables and accrued charges B 5 ENE IEZQFEpfiifﬁ 27 26,408 100,521
Lease liabilities HEaE 21 1,286 -
Contract liabilities aHEE 25 154 6,376
Current tax liabilities BIEffIE B (& 7.347 6,812
Borrowings == 28 - 1,049
Finance lease payables ENREHRE 21 - 112
36,164 177,716
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 230,925 273,370
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERABAR
LIABILITIES 332,221 407,953
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2020 2019
=T=FF =EF-NEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ihg=2 FET FH&T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Borrowings ®BE 28 20,742 22,177
Bonds payable EES 29 11,500 1,000
Finance lease payables ENREREE 21 - 136
Lease liabilities HEaE 21 972 =
33,214 23,313
NET ASSETS EERE 299,007 384,640
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAR &
Share capital % A 31 42,568 39,768
Reserves W 32 256,439 311,000
Equity attributable to owners of the QT EE AEGER
Company 299,007 350,768
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR HE 2 - 33,872
TOTAL EQUITY B 299,007 384,640
The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 191 were #EHNRFVAEI1MBENGEAUKERRENR T -TF

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
24 July 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

&

Wang Jing
DIRECTOR

EFE

TtAZTMRAEEERMUAERRETIE  XHIAT

RERE -

IE®

Wang Xing

Qiao

DIRECTOR

EFE

“EZCZEER TEHFEEKERRAS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

3

Attributable to owners of the Company

LGN
Capital Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Translation  redemption  Contributed Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* surplus* losses*  Sub-total interests equity

&%

ks RitEE  ReEf ENREr  RORE

HKE'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
thn  tRn  TEn  TEn TR

a\E® RMER M FERER g
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T AL TAL  TAL  TAR

At 1 April 2019 RZE-hE
mA—H 39,768 385,419 906 9,175 577,204 23,909 (685,613) 350,768 33872 384,640
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - (25,114) (25,114) (@113 (29,227)

Other comprehensive loss: 12 EER :

Bichange difference arising A E BN ERBES
on translation of foreign ~~ ZEWEE

operations - - - (453 - - - (45 - (5
Reclassification adjustments  HEHBATEE

upon disposal of FHERE

subsidiaris - - - (B3%) - - - (%) - B3
Total comprehensive loss for  £E 2 EFEEE

the year - - - (38,460) - - (25,114) (63,574) 4113 (67,687)
Transactions with owners: ~ EERAZLS
Contributions: jig-
Issue of shares for FRENBLE

acquisition of a subsidiary  E{TR(7

(note 17(a) (P3E17(a)) 2,800 8,960 - - - - - 11,760 - 11,760
Changes in ownership FREERZE

interests:
Deemed partial disposal of ~ EfEHAHHE—H

a subsidiary HEAE - - 3 - - - - 53 G3) -
Capital contribution REMBAE

from non-controlling HERBE

shareholders of a HE

subsidiary - - - - - - - - 29 29
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMERA

(note 18) (Ktsz18) - - (959) - - - 959 - (30,000) (30,000)
Total transactions with HEEAZRS

owners et 2,800 8,960 (906) - - - 959 11,813 (29,759) (17,946)
At 31 March 2020 WZ%-%

=A=1-H 42,568 394,379 - (29,285) 577,204 23,909 (709,768) 299,007 - 299,007

* These reserve accounts comprise the reserves in the consolidated — * ZERBREPERAMBRAR 2FHE - ZF

statement of financial position. The nature and purpose of these
reserves are detailed in note 32(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Attributable to owners of the Company

AREEE ARl
Capital Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Translation redemption  Contributed Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* surplus* losses*  Sub-total ~interests equity
Bk
Rx  REE  RARE  EXGG  BERE AR EHER Nt FEREE BEs
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
Thr Tk T Tk T Tk T T Tin Thr
At 1 April 2018 RZZ-N\E
MA-A 39,768 385,419 830 28,804 577,204 23,909 (671,664) 384,330 3115 415,445
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - - (13949)  (13.99) 2205 (1,724)
Other comprehensive loss: £t 2EER :
Eichange difference arising A E B EHES
on translation of foreign ~~ ZEHEE
operations - - - (19,689) - - - (19,689) 118 (19,571)
Total comprehensive loss for £ 2EEEZE
the year - - - (19,689) - - (13,949) (33,638) 2,343 (31,295)
Transactions with owners: ~ EEEAZRS
Changes in ownership HEEERED:
interests:
Deemed partial disposal of 8 B{EHAHE
subsidiary milENT - - 76 - - - - 76 (76) -
Capital contribution RENBAH
from non-controlling FERBR L
shareholders of a T
subsidiary - - - - - - - - 490 490
Total transactions with BEEAIRS
owners a% - - 76 - - - - 76 414 490
At 31 March 2019 \CE-NE
~A=1-H 39,768 385,419 906 9,175 577,204 23,909 (685,613) 350,768 33812 384,640
* These reserve accounts comprise the reserves in the consolidated — * ZEREREBEGAVBMRRAR ZHE - ZF

HEZHEERBOFBHNGE M EREW T
32(c) °

statement of financial position. The nature and purpose of these
reserves are detailed in note 32(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTMER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Notes FET FHET
lok=g (re-presented)
(&=751)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEFTH
(Loss) Profit before tax: FrAi AT (BT )& A -
Continuing operations REREER (22,077) 9,191
Discontinued operations BRI SRS (6,831) (11,878)
Adjustments for: AR
Concession granted B AT I 12,469 -
Finance costs B 75 K AR 5,472 4,736
Depreciation of property, plant and M BEREBITE
equipment 5,674 6,612
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 5,119 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE A} £ 0 & SRR i
payments - 1,691
Provision (Reversal) of loss allowance Z 5 UGB BB EERE
for trade receivables (%) 1,037 (2,852)
Allowance for obsolete and slow- PRE N IHTTE 2 E#FE
moving inventories 2,491 1,717
(Increase) Decrease in fair value of BAFEFAEBZZ SR
financial assets at fair value through BEAFEGEG )RS
profit or loss (2) 76
Interest income FMEHA (34) (18)
Loss allowance on other receivables H b e R IR B 1R - 6,896
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEDE  WEREH2
equipment U 25 (3) -
Gain on disposal of disposed group HEHEER Z R (7,349) -
Share of results of an associate Xy NI E 294 (762)
Operating cash flows before changes in BEEECEHAI LR
working capital Rens (3,740) 15,409
Changes in working capital: EEEEH -
Inventories FE 10,326 25,328
Trade receivables, deposits and other ESRWGIE e hEM
receivables JE YR IR (53,540) (36,915)
Properties for sale under development BEPEFEME 384 138,129
Properties held for sale HEHEZME 46,773 (201,524)
Trade payables and accrued charges B REMNFENEFER (12,031) 63,529
Contract liabilities aHAaE (5,074) 2,901
Net cash (used in) generated from BE(FR)EEZRE T
operations (16,902) 6,857
Income tax paid B FTEH (1,704) (795)
Net cash flows (used in) generated RETHR(FTREEZRE
from operating activities mE R (18,606) 6,062
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—_E-_TFE=A=1—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-ZHF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Notes FET FHET
=g (re-presented)
(&=7)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZH
Dividend received from an associate EREENEI R8s ol ¥\ 654 1,005
Interest received 2 W8 34 18
(Repayment to) Advance from immediate (TEEEE@ ANAEIFKIA)
holding company BEEEZERARRAR (32,799) 10,967
Advance from related companies )i NG E= TN 14,851 2,939
(Repayment to) Advance from a director (BEBEEHE)EEPRR 154 117
Net cash outflow from disposal of HEMBRARZRE R F5E
subsidiaries (37) -
Net cash outflow from disposal of HEHESE RS MHF5E
Disposed Group 18 (2,534) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries I EERT B A Al 17 (22,918) -
Proceed from disposal of property, plant  HEWE - BE L& E
and equipment FT15 508 3
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEBE ¥ - E NE&H (4,696) (2,355)
Net cash flows (used in) generated REZB (A EEZRSE
from investing activities MEFE (47,288) 12,691
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMETH 35(a)
New borrowings raised MEELEE 2,243 22,213
Capital contribution from non-controlling B{E R R FEIER KX E
shareholders of a subsidiary 294 490
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (2,243) (3,851)
Interest paid on borrowings BEIEERE (3,893) (3,837)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ERNEEERNE (472)
Proceeds from bonds issuance BHEITASREIA 29 10,500 1,000
Interest paid on bonds issued BETEFZBENFE (293) (7)
Repayment of finance lease payables EEENREHEE - (92)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEERE (3,801) -
Net cash flows generated from METHEECRERETH
financing activities 2,335 15,916
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH ReERBESEEWORLD)E M
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R (63,559) 34,669
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of RIPEHRY RS RIS
the reporting period ZEM 75,480 50,930
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes JEXREE) 7 1,887 (10,119)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of E’Q‘%ﬁm,ﬂizfﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁ
the reporting period, represented by  Z&Y - BMRITHEBRRIRS
bank balances and cash 13,808 75,480
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

82

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Sinostar Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The immediate holding company of the
Company is Achieve Prosper Capital Limited, which was
incorporated in Samoa, and the ultimate holding company
of the Company is Liaoning Shihua (Group) Property
Development Limited* (BEEZE(KE)EHERZEERATF),
which was established in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the “Corporate Information” section of the annual
report.

On 7 January 2020, the Company passed a resolution in
a general meeting to dispose of all the equity interest in
Harvest Way Holdings Limited (“Harvest Way"”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Disposed Group”), which
principal activities are design and sale of electronic
products and securities trading. The disposal of the
Disposed Group (note 18) constituted a major disposal (the
“Disposal”) under Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). The Disposal was completed on 13 January 2020.

As a result of the Disposal, the Group ceased to
engage in the business of design and sale of electronic
products and securities trading. The Group is engaged
in properties development, properties investment,
properties management and operation and management
of hydroelectric power stations.

* The English name is for identification only.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—_E-_TFE=A=1—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting
policies adopted in the 2019 consolidated financial
statements except for the adoption of the following
new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year:

Annual Improvements to 2015-2017 Cycle
HKFRSs
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income

Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
Amendments to HKAS 28 Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
HKFRS 16 Leases

Except for HKFRS 16 as described below, the adoption
of the above new/revised HKFRSs does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.

HKFRS 16: Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 and related interpretations
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019. It significantly changes, among others, the lessee
accounting by replacing the dual-model under HKAS 17
with a single model which requires a lessee to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for the rights and
obligations created by all leases with a term of more than
12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
For lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases
as operating leases or finance leases, and to account
for those two types of leases differently. HKFRS 16 also
requires enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessees
and lessors.

2.

BRANETR] RIERT 2 BBH K
BEEA(TEBUBREE
q1)
BAMBEEEDRR-T-NFEAMEE
KA — B RHBERE - HRAAT
SRS AR R B A M2 HT AT
S EBHIWE ERIBR

BEREVBREERz —FT-RFE

FEME T+ FiAH
FEME

BE (BB BHRE MAEHERZ

RELZES) THEE M

—B2BE23%

EBGHENE19% EERA

pa )

EBGERNE28% NBERARREE
pa ) TEZRE
BEAVBREENE AAamEREZ
95k ZIEE] REER

EAYBRELENE HE
1658

Br TRl 2 F B B A% RS 2RI F165]
Sh o BRI BT BRI B M B RE &
AT EHAEE 276 W BRRELER
BEXFE -

ERNBHREERNE 165 HE

EARVBRELENFIRE T —NF—
A—BRZ KRBz FEMARREE S
EUF TR NARERE HH(EPEE)
EBEAZEF T EERERES  UE—
EARREESFEYNEI7RTHEER
A RE-BARERIFEREERKEE
BE BRAEARRAFNEBI2(EA
WATAREMES 2 BN RETERER
BEEMHEERGBE HEBEASHEEM
5 AAVBBRESEMNS16HARME AT
BEREAEI7THROEBAGFEMRE °
At - BEAEEKEREDERKEHE
SRMEME  YEEMEREETTIRZE
AR - EEMBHRSERF ISR TRE
AEARHBEARREFERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

84

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

HKFRS 16: Leases (CONT'D)

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group
has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time at 1 April 2019
(i.e. the date of initial application, the “DIA") using the
modified retrospective approach in which comparative
information has not been restated. Instead, the Group
recognised the cumulative effect of initially applying
HKFRS 16 as an adjustment to the balance of accumulated
losses or other component of equity, where appropriate,
at the DIA.

The Group also elected to use the transition practical
expedient not to reassess whether a contract was, or
contained, a lease at the DIA and the Group applied
HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and to contracts entered
into or changed on or after the DIA that are identified as
leases applying HKFRS 16.

As lessee

Before the adoption of HKFRS 16, lease contracts were
classified as operating lease or finance lease in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies applicable prior to
the DIA.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group accounted for
the leases in accordance with the transition provisions of
HKFRS 16 and the Group’s accounting policies applicable
from the DIA.
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ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

HKFRS 16: Leases (CONT’'D)

As lessee — leases previously classified as operating

leases

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease

liabilities for leases previously classified as operating

leases at the DIA, except for leases for which the

underlying asset is of low value, and the Group applied

the following practical expedients on a lease-by-lease

basis.

(a)

Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics.

Adjusted the right-of-use assets at the DIA by
the provision for onerous leases recognised
immediately before the DIA by applying HKAS 37,
as an alternative to performing an impairment
review at the DIA.

Did not recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities to leases for which the lease term ends
within 12 months of the DIA.

Excluded initial direct costs from the measurement
of the right-of-use assets at the DIA.

Used hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

2.

RANETR] RIBRT 2 BB

HBEEA(ERBUBREE
A1) (&)
EAMBHEEAR 16  AE ()

EREBA-BESIERAKLLHENHEE

AEERERERBHREHOEREEH
EMHERRAEREEENEERRE  KF
HERREERAKEEREE  AKERES
HEEERAUTEERH -

HAEAHEMAURBZEEARE
RE—REE -

BBEBEESHENFIVRYER
BEERERABAERAZEENE
EHEE YRERERRHFE
EREEE (FARBEXRERAH
EITRERMZERIA

HHEBNERERBBE12@A
NERNEETSERARERAREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

HKFRS 16: Leases (CONT'D)

As lessee — leases previously classified as operating
leases (CONT'D)

At the DIA, right-of-use assets were, on a lease-by-lease
basis, measured at either,

(a) their carrying amount as if HKFRS 16 had
been applied since the commencement date,
but discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the DIA; or

(b) an amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised
immediately before the DIA.

The following table summarises the impacts arising from
adoption of HKFRS 16 on the consolidated financial
statements at the DIA:

2. REMHE/ REITZEBYE
BELEA(TERUBREE
A (&)

ERABHEEAL16%  BR(H)

EREABA-BEIBEAKEHENEE

(&)

WERERAN - (¢ AEAEREEEE
EEAUTHREAE -

(a)

HEEmE(ENBEV B RELERE
1eSC BRI A HIRER) - XA
AEARBEREBAMZEEEE
MEEITHR K

HEREERESE  BEREXR
ERRHAERAREEERRIM
BNEARENREREHAE -

TREANERER B RN EBRBRE
ERF16RUGEMBHRROTE -

Classification
and carrying

amount under

Initial ~ Classification
Reclassification measurement  and carrying
on adoption  on adoption amount under

HKAS 17 of HKFRS 16 of HKFRS 16 HKFRS 16
EREEN  RWEERE  ROAEERE  DERERS
F1THN REEAF 168 REEAF 165 ERE16%
AEREEE WEHHE BHSHE WABREEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR T Fhx THR
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment (note 20) NE - BRER&EHF20) 295 (295) - -
Prepaid land lease payments (note 21) B BERE N H21) 42,146 (42,146) - -
Right-of-use assets RAREE - 42,441 9,524 51,965
Liabilities =0
Trade payables and accrued charges BORNTERENER (983) 983 - -
Finance lease payables ERRBERE (248) 248 - -
Lease liabilities RERR - (1,231) (9,524) (10,755)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA

2. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HONG 2. BRWEE] KRBT ZBBEHE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HREE(EBUBHRESE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D) A1) (&)

HKFRS 16: Leases (CONT'D) ERVH/REEAE 165  HE(HE)
As lessee — leases previously classified as operating ERBEBA-BIEIEAKEHENEE
leases (CONT'D) (#)
Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the HEBERKTHERERENZ REX
remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s FER R A AAMBEANIGEEER KR -
incremental borrowing rate at the DIA. The weighted RERERABMESAEHER 2 NEFHE
average incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease EREMNER6.42% °
liabilities at the DIA is 6.42%.
Reconciliation of operating lease commitments disclosed RZE-—NE=A=1+—HERBAEGTE
applying HKAS 17 as at 31 March 2019 and lease Bl 7TSR B Bl ERAEERNERE
liabilities recognised at the DIA is as follows. RAMRANEHESBEHENAT -
HK$'000
FET
Operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 RZZT—NF=A=+—HHNLEHEAE 16,267
Discounted operating lease commitments at the REXERBBRFERAABEAESEERNE
DIA using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate BRI E T E R 14,703
Less: short-term leases and other leases with B RHHERMBRTHAR -S4
remaining lease term ending on or ZA=T-HEZAAERNEMEE
before 31 March 2020 (4,196)
Add: finance leases previously classified as m:BESEARNREHENREEE
finance lease payables 248
Total lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 R-E-NFNE—BMNAEEERE 10,755

—EZoZEER PEHFEEKEARAE 87




For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

88

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

HKFRS 16: Leases (CONT'D)

As lessee - leases previously classified as finance
leases

The Group measures the carrying amount of the right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities at the DIA at the
carrying amount of the lease assets and lease liabilities
immediately before that date measured applying HKAS
17. The Group accounts for those leases applying HKFRS
16 from the DIA.

As lessee

At the DIA, except for those that meet the definition
of investment properties, all right-of-use assets were
presented within the line item “right-of-use assets” on
the consolidated statement of financial position. Besides,
lease liabilities were shown separately on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

As lessor

The Group is not required to make any adjustments on
transition for leases in which it is a lessor and those
leases are accounted for by applying HKFRS 16 from the
DIA.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDAT
CIAL STATEMENTS |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, which collective term
includes all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“"HKICPA"), and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure requirements
under the Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"”) which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and all
of its subsidiaries. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
year as that of the Company using consistent
accounting policies.

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which the Group obtains control and
continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.
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3.

90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (CONT'D)

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately
from owners of the Company, in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in
event of liquidation, are measured initially either at
fair value or at the present ownership instruments’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice
of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are initially measured at fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-
controlling interest having a deficit balance.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (CONT’'D)

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest determined at the
date when control is lost and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests at the date when control is
lost. The amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the disposed
subsidiary are accounted for on the same basis
as would be required if the parent had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any
investment retained in the former subsidiary and
any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary
are accounted for as a financial asset, associate,
joint venture or others as appropriate from the
date when control is lost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred
is measured at the acquisition date fair value which
is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether
to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses
the financial assets acquired and liabilities assumed
for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest is remeasured
at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT A
(CONT'D)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill (CONT'D)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the
acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill (CONT'D)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill at the end of the reporting period.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units. Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
a subsequent period. Where goodwill has been
allocated to a cash generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash
generating unit retained.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
elements of control. In the Company’s statement
of financial position which is presented within
these notes, an investment in subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment loss. The carrying amount
of the investment is reduced to its recoverable
amount on an individual basis, if it is higher than
the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit
or loss during the year in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (CONT'D)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives
from the date on which they are available for
use and after taking into account their estimated
residual values, using the straight-line method,
at rates set out below. Where parts of an item
of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a

reasonable basis and depreciated separately:

20%-25%
Over the remaining

Motor vehicles
Leasehold improvement

lease terms

Hydroelectric power stations 2%-5%
and related infrastructure

Computer equipment 25%

Furniture, fixtures and 10%-33%

equipment
Plant and machinery 5%-30%
An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT’D)

(e)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An
investment property including property that is
being constructed or developed for future use
as investment property is measured initially at its
cost including all direct costs attributable to the

property.

After initial recognition, the investment property
is stated at fair value at the end of the reporting
period based on valuation by an external
independent valuer. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of the investment property
are recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

Property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property is stated at cost
less impairment losses until the construction or
development is complete, when it is stated at fair
value. The difference between the fair value and
the carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment
property is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the property,
which is recognised in profit or loss.
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98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(f)

(9)

Properties for sale under development

Properties for sale under development are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs include acquisition costs, prepaid land lease
payments, construction costs, borrowing costs
capitalised and other direct costs attributable to
such properties. Net realisable value is determined
with reference to sale proceeds received after the
reporting period less selling expenses and estimated
costs of completion, or by estimates based on
prevailing market condition. Upon completion, the
properties are reclassified to properties held for
sale at the carrying amount.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Costs of properties
include acquisition costs, prepaid land lease
payments, construction costs, borrowing costs
capitalised and other direct costs attributable to
such properties. Net realisable value is determined
with reference to sale proceeds received after
the reporting period less selling expenses, or by
estimates based on prevailing market condition.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT’D)

(h)

Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and
only when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments and on a
trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only
when (i) the Group’s contractual rights to future
cash flows from the financial asset expire; or (ii)
the Group transfers the financial asset and either (a)
it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset; or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset but it
does not retain control of the financial asset.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables
without a significant financing component which
are initially measured at their transaction price)
are initially recognised at their fair value plus,
in the case of financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is
classified as (i) measured at amortised cost;
(ii) debt investment measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income; (iii) equity
investment measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”); or (iv) measured
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL").
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(h)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Recognition and derecognition (CONT'D)

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the financial
asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to
their initial recognition unless the Group changes
its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on
the first day of the first annual reporting period

following the change in the business model.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
from impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or

loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(h) Financial instruments (CONT’'D)

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that
are not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI,
including financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at
FVPL, financial assets resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies and
financial assets that are otherwise required to be
measured at FVPL. They are carried at fair value,
with any resultant gain and loss recognised in
profit or loss, which does not include any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend
or interest income is presented separately from fair
value gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if
itis:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term;

(ii) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking on
initial recognition; or

(iii) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective
hedging instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the
gains or losses on them on different bases.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

HE—F-_FTF=A=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT’D)

(i)

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and
only when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only
when the liability is extinguished, that is, when
the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their
fair value plus, in the case of financial liabilities
not carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issue of the financial
liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, unless the effect of discounting
would be insignificant, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(),

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECL"”) on financial assets that
are measured at amortised cost to which the
impairment requirements apply in accordance
with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific treatments
as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial
asset at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if
the credit risk on that financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the
credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset
at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses (i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls)
over the expected life of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present
value of the difference between the contractual
cash flows that are due to an entity under the
contract and the cash flows that the entity expects
to receive. For a lease receivable, the cash flows
used for determining the ECL should be consistent
with the cash flows used in measuring the lease
receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16 or HKAS
17.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument while 12-month
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 Marth 0
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT’D)

)}

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(CONT'D)

Measurement of ECL (CONT'D)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
one or more of the following shared credit risk
characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(iii) nature of collateral, if any

(iv) industry of debtors

(v) geographical location of debtors

(vi) external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial instrument'’s
credit risk and loss since initial recognition.
The resulting changes in the loss allowance are
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial instrument, except
in the case of debt investments at FVOCI, the loss
allowance is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the fair value reserve
(recycling).
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4 CONSOLIDAT

EN NTS'

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTI ES
(CONT'D)
@) Impairment of financial assets and other items

(CONT’'D)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting
an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience
indicates that the Group may not receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full if the
financial instrument meets any of the following
criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the
Group); or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by
the counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT’D)
(j) Impairment of financial assets and other items
(CONT'D)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. In particular, the
following information is taken into account in the
assessment:

(i) the debtor’s failure to make payments of
principal or interest on the due dates;

(i) an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external or
internal credit rating (if available);

(iii) an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

(iv) actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have or may have a significant adverse effect on
the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the
Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

()

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(CONT'D)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk
(CONT'D)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a financial instrument has
not increased significantly since initial recognition
if the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term; and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfill its contractual cash flow
obligations.

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables and operating lease receivables,
the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating
ECL. The Group recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECL at each reporting date and has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 ‘
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

)}

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(CONT'D)

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired include observable data about the
following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event.

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

(f) the purchase or origination of a financial
asset at a deep discount that reflects the
incurred credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—_E-_TFE=A=1—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(1)

(k)

)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(CONT'D)

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when
the Group has no reasonable expectations of
recovering the contractual cash flows on a
financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
However, financial assets that are written off could
still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due,
taking into account legal advice if appropriate. Any
subsequent recovery is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents represent
cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents.

Revenue recognition

Rental income under operating lease is recognised
when the properties are let out and on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Before 1
April 2019, contingent rents are recognised as
income in the period in which they are earned.
From 1 April 2019, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate are initially measured
using the index or rate at the commencement
date and subsequently adjusted when such index
or rate changes. Such payments are recognised as
income on the straight-line basis over the lease
term. Other variable lease payments are recognised
as income in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers those payments occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

)

Revenue recognition (CONT'D)

Interest income from financial assets is recognised
using the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the assets
while it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) in
case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Revenue from contracts with customers within
HKFRS 15

The nature of the goods or services provided by the
Group is (i) development and sale of properties;
(ii) properties management; (iii) operation and
management of hydroelectric power stations; and
(iv) design and sale of electronic products.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the
goods or services promised in a contract with
a customer and identifies as a performance
obligation each promise to transfer to the customer
either:

(a) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or
services) that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct good or service that are
substantially the same and that have the
same pattern of transfer to the customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is
distinct if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) the customer can benefit from the good or
service either on its own or together with
other resources that are readily available
to the customer (i.e. the good or service is
capable of being distinct); and

(b) the Group’s promise to transfer the good
or service to the customer is separately
identifiable from other promises in the
contract (i.e. the promise to transfer the
good or service is distinct within the context
of the contract).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—_E-_TFE=A=1—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

)

Revenue recognition (CONT'D)

Revenue from contracts with customers within
HKFRS 15 (CONT'D)

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring
a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a
customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the
customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service
over time and, therefore, satisfies a performance
obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one
of the following criteria is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

(b) the Group’'s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced;
or

(0) the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to
date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied
over time, the Group satisfies the performance
obligation at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs,
the Group considers the concept of control and
such indicators as legal title, physical possession,
right to payment, significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset, and customer acceptance.

3.

BEREHBEE

)

Wz (E)

EBMBREEAFEISFEERR
BEFEANYE(E)

W 2 TR HY BF ]
BE(XEZB)AEEEBATFEE
AENENARG(NEE)BITRE
WEER RETUAER BEER
(HBEE)FPEFEENEH R
ELE 3

A B R R EE Y R RF AT
HlHE - Bt mEATEFR—H
S AKERTEOEEXMER
e R R

(@ FPRAKERMNEFREFE
BRHEEBAKENRENTR
iz R Rl as -

(b) AEEWNEBEAOTR/BIELK
REFPHEEEWRAERHR
REZEGRINEE : &

(0 AKRENENTATEAIE
ARASRESELANE
EBRAEEHLESETK
B B #0 5 SR A A 58 B AT
HYRER o

MAEBWHFERRBETENE
T EEFPEGHREABEENZS
B AEBERX-BHBETELY
B o £ F 122 ) 4 ) 05 B8 R B
AEEEEREH BRI LA
AR BEER NRE B
EHAENERRR LD HIARET
FEKREER -

“ZOZEFE DEEFEKEERAT 111



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020

BE

3.

ZECTF=A=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(M

Revenue recognition (CONT'D)

Revenue from contracts with customers within
HKFRS 15 (CONT'D)

Development and sale of properties

The Group develops and sells residential properties
to the customers. Sale of properties is recognised
at a point in time when control of the property has
been transferred, being when the customer obtains
the physical possession or the legal title of the
completed property.

Properties management

The Group provides properties management
services to residential and commercial properties.
Properties management service income is

recognised over time when services are rendered.

Operation and management of hydroelectric

power stations

The Group operates and manages hydroelectric
power stations. The sale of electricity is recognised
over time when electricity is generated and
transmitted to the customer.

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS
15, the progress towards complete satisfaction
of a performance obligation in respect of sale of
electricity and properties management services
is measured based on the output method, which
is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of goods or services.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

;,/“.‘ - ;
THE CONSOLIE

(CONT’D)

(1

(m)

Revenue recognition (CONT'D)

Revenue from contracts with customers within
HKFRS 15 (CONT'D)

Design and sale of electronic products

The Group designs and sells electronic products
(representing consumer electronic audio and video
equipment, karaoke equipment and accessories)
to the customers. Sales of electronic products
are recognised at point in time when control of
the products has been transferred, being when
the products are delivered to a customer, there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products and the
customer has obtained legal titles to the products.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or
services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, the
contract is presented as a contract asset, excluding
any amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely,
if a customer pays consideration, or the Group
has a right to an amount of consideration that
is unconditional, before the Group transfers a
good or service to the customer, the contract
is presented as a contract liability when the
payment is made or the payment is due (whichever
is earlier). A receivable is the Group’s right to
consideration that is unconditional or only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(m)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (CONT'D)

For a single contract or a single set of related
contracts, either a net contract asset or a net
contract liability is presented. Contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net
basis.

For sale of properties, it is common for the Group
to receive from the customer the whole or some of
the contractual payments before the properties are
delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition for
such transactions). The Group recognises a contract
liability until it is recognised as revenue. During
that period, any significant financing components,
if applicable, will be included in the contract
liability and will be expensed as accrued unless the
interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.

For properties management service, the Group
receives management fee in advance from the
customers before services are delivered. The
Group recognises a contract liability until it is
recognised as revenue. During that period, any
significant financing components, if applicable,
will be included in the contract liability and will be
expensed as accrued unless the interest expense is
eligible for capitalisation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(n)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews internal and external sources of information
to assess whether there is any indication that
its property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets may be impaired or impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated,
based on the higher of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income
in profit or loss immediately.

The accounting policy for recognition and reversal
of the impairment loss for goodwill is stated in the
accounting policy for goodwill in note 3(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(o)

Foreign currency translation

Iltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The Company’s functional currency is
HKS.

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

The results and financial position of all the
group entities that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency (“foreign
operations”) are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

o Assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented and,
where applicable, goodwill and fair value
adjustments on the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation which
are to be treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation, are translated at
the closing rate at the end of the reporting
period;

o Income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at

average exchange rate;
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT’D)

(o)

Foreign currency translation (CONT'D)

All resulting exchange differences arising
from the above translation and exchange
differences arising from a monetary
item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation are
recognised as a separate component of
equity;

On the disposal of a foreign operation,
which includes a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, a
disposal involving the loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to the foreign operation
that is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the separate
component of equity is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the gain or
loss on disposal is recognised;

On the partial disposal of the Group’s
interest in a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation which does not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of
equity is re-attributed to the non-controlling
interests in that foreign operation and are
not reclassified to profit or loss; and

On all other partial disposals, which includes
partial disposal of joint ventures that do
not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control, the proportionate
share of the cumulative amount of exchange
differences recognised in the separate
component of equity is reclassified to profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(p)

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group
to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs and involves
the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—_E-_TFE=A=1—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(q)

(r)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain employees. Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at the fair
value (excluding the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the
date of grant. The fair value is determined using
the Black-Scholes pricing model. The cost of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’'s estimate of shares that will
eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-
market based vesting conditions.

Leases

Applicable from 1 April 2019

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease at inception of the contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption
to short-term leases and low-value asset leases.
Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component
within a lease contract as a lease separately. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 ‘
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(r)

Leases (CONT'D)

Applicable from 1 April 2019 (CONT’'D)
As lessee (CONT'D)

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give
rise to a separate component are considered to
be part of the total consideration that is allocated
to the separately identified components of the
contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability at the commencement date of the
lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
which comprises

(a) the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Leases (CONT’'D)

Applicable from 1 April 2019 (CONT’'D)
As lessee (CONT'D)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses and adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful life of the right-of-use asset as
follows:
Leasehold lands 20-30 years
Office premises 2 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date of the contract.

The lease payments comprise the following
payments for the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date:

(a) fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under
residual value guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(r)

Leases (CONT'D)

Applicable from 1 April 2019 (CONT'D)
As lessee (CONT'D)

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, or where it is not
readily determinable, the incremental borrowing
rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability and by reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised
discount rate when there are changes to the lease
payments arising from a change in the lease term
or the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option.

The Group recognises the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. If the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is
reduced to zero and there is a further reduction
in the measurement of the lease liability, the
Group recognises any remaining amount of the
remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate
lease if

(a) the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(r) Leases (CONT’'D)

Applicable from 1 April 2019 (CONT’'D)
As lessee (CONT'D)

When a lease modification is not accounted for as

a separate lease, at the effective date of the lease

modification,

(@)

(b)

(0

(d)

(e)

the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract on the basis of relative
stand-alone price as described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the
modified contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by
discounting the revised lease payments using
a revised discount rate over the revised
lease term.

for lease modifications that decrease the
scope of the lease, the Group accounts for
the remeasurement of the lease liability by
decreasing the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any
gain or loss relating to the partial or full
termination of the lease in profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group
accounts for the remeasurement of the
lease liability by making a corresponding
adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(r)

Leases (CONT'D)

Applicable from 1 April 2019 (CONT'D)
As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a
finance lease or an operating lease at the inception
date of the lease. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying
asset. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it
accounts for the head lease and sublease as two
separate contracts. The sublease is classified as
an operating lease if the head lease is a short-
term lease to which the Group has applied the
recognition exemption. Otherwise, the sublease
is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the
head lease.

As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and
impairment requirements in HKFRS 9 to the
operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted
for as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to the original lease as
part of the lease payments for the new lease.

Applicable before 1 April 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT’D)

(r)

Leases (CONT’'D)

Applicable before 1 April 2019 (CONT’'D)
As lessor

Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the
Group under operating leases are included in non-
current assets, and rentals receivable under the
operating leases are credited to profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

As lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at the lower of the fair
value of the leased assets and the present value of
the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the statement
of financial position as finance lease obligation.
Finance charges, which represent the difference
between the total leasing commitments and the
fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to
profit or loss over the term of the relevant lease so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge
on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020

BE

3.

ZECTF=A=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(s)

(t)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted
average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Taxation

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.
Current tax liabilities is calculated based on the
Group's taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

THE CO

NSOL

= V]

(CONT’D)

(t)

Taxation (CONT'D)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(t)

Taxation (CONT’'D)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If
the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties are measured based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

éh

- e

(CONT’D)

(t)

(u)

Taxation (CONT'D)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value,
being the proceeds from sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including land costs,
borrowing costs, business taxes and all property
development expenditures. LAT is recognised as
an income tax expense. LAT paid is a deductible
expense for PRC enterprise income tax purposes.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related
to the Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the

Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a
holding company of the Company.

-
3.

N

-

EXREFHREGE)

(t)

(u)

BiE (&)

fid FE 0 782 | A 5 1 #1774 A1) A B H3
MEEERBENHHARE BT
MBEEERBERER —BHREER
WHMEHEREAREE BRF
HELEFHEHNBHREERE
B BERBEERREERN -

AR L i IR E AR ([ iBE R 1)

T ERBETWEEZ R
ZHEFHEI0%E60% W - BIHE
MEMSRIERANBREZ(81E LT
AR BERAR - FBBIE R
EVMERTEHASL) - THIBERER
BRAHAX BN ERA
FEMERSHOATNRER -

BT
A Bk 7 5 L AN 5% 1 R I A A 3K

HEE -

(@ —HBEAXEABBRRS
REBMORB S - WZEA:

(i) AE 5 122 1) 3K 2K R 422 1)
REE

(i HEAEHEEEAF

(iiy AEARAHEARRTF

ZEBRRRIETEER
ABHW—B -

“ZOZEER TEHFEEKEARAE 129



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT'D)

(u) Related parties (CONT'D)

(b) An entity is related to the Group (reporting
entity) if any of the following conditions
applies:

()

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Company are
members of the same group (which
means that each holding company,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related
to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity(or of a
holding company of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services
to the Company or to a holding
company of the Company.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

;,/“.‘ - ;
THE CONSOLIE

(CONT’D)

(u)

(v)

Related parties (CONT'D)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(o) dependants of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate
includes subsidiaries of the associate and a joint
venture includes subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of the Group’s various lines of
business in different geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(w)

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group, the operations and cash flows of which
can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
Group and which represents a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or
is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of
a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets
the criteria to be classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5, if earlier. It also occurs
when the operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on
the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or
disposal group constituting the discontinued
operation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(x)

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the
following new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current year, which the Group has
not early adopted.

Amendments to HKASs 1 and 8  Definition of Material !
Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform !
HKFRSs 7 and 9

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business ?

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions *

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts *

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended *

Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulfilling a Contract ®

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework °

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle °

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture ©

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020

2 Effective for acquisitions that occur on or after
the beginning of the first annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 June 2020
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2021

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022

6 The effective date to be determined

The Group is in the process of making a detailed
assessment of the possible impact on the future
adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs. So far the
management is of the opinion that the adoption
of the new/revised HKFRSs will not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 Marth 0
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

(a) Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties measured at fair value, the
directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the
Group's investment properties are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties overtime, rather
than through sale. Therefore, in determining the
Group's deferred tax for investment properties,
the directors have rebutted the presumption that
investment properties measured at fair value are
recovered through sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—_E-_TFE=A=1—HILFE

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(a) Impairment of trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables

The Group’s management estimates the loss
allowance for trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables by using various inputs and
assumptions including risk of a default and
expected loss rate. The estimation involves high
degree of uncertainty which is based on the
Group’'s historical information, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables.
Details of the key assumption and inputs used in
estimating ECL are set out in notes 6(b) and 22 to
the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Write-down of properties held for sale and
properties for sale under development

Net realisable value of properties held for sale is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expense. Net realisable value of
properties for sale under development is assessed
with reference to valuations carried out by an
independent professional valuer. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of constructing and
selling properties of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in economy and
demand of market. The Group will reassess the
estimates by the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONT'D)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether property,
plant and equipment have any indication of
impairment, in accordance with the relevant
accounting policies. The recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment have been
determined based on value in use calculations.
These calculations require the use of judgement
and estimates on future operating cash flows and
discount rates applied. Where the actual cash flows
are different from the original estimate, a material
change in the amount of impairment may arise.

Fair values of investment properties

The Group appoints an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair values of the investment
properties. The valuation of the investment
properties is performed using the direct comparison
method, which requires adjustments to transaction
price of similar properties regarding differences
in key valuation attributes such as location, road,
frontage, size of property, etc. between the
properties under appraisal and the comparables.

Income taxes

No deferred tax asset was recognised in the
Group's consolidated statement of financial
position in relation to the Group’s estimated
unused tax losses of HK$50,205,000 (2019:
HK$32,660,000) as at 31 March 2020 due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in
the future. In cases where the actual future taxable
profits generated are more or less than expected,
a material recognition or reversal of deferred
tax asset may arise, which would be recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which such a
recognition or reversal takes place.
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e N

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMEN'
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders of the
Company through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the amounts due to immediate holding
company, a director and related companies, borrowings
and bonds payable, disclosed in notes 26, 28 and 29
respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through new share issues and share buy-backs
as well as the issue of new debts or the redemption of
existing debts.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Company
are operated in the PRC and most of their
transactions are denominated in RMB. The
exchange rate of RMB against HK$ is subject to
the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government. The
Group did not have significant exposure to foreign
exchange risk arising from daily operating activities
of the subsidiaries because their main operations
are conducted in their functional currency.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to bank balances and cash and trade and other
receivables. The carrying amount of these financial
assets recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position, which is net of loss allowance,
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk.

Bank balances

The Group had limited credit risk on bank balances
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. The Group has not suffered any
significant losses arising from the non-performance
by these parties in the past and management do
not expect this position to change in the future.

Trade receivables

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
are made to customers with good credit history.

The Group normally grants its customers an
average credit period from 0 to 365 days
(2019: 0 to 365 days). In order to minimise the
Group’'s exposure to credit risk, the directors
have delegated a team being responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures. In addition, the
directors review the recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivable regularly to ensure that
adequate loss allowance for expected credit losses
are recognised for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk on trade receivables is significantly
reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

(b)

Credit risk (CONT’D)

Trade receivables (CONT'D)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC (2019: the PRC). The
trade debtors located in the PRC (2019: the PRQ)
accounted for 100% (2019: 76%) of the Group’s
total trade receivables as at 31 March 2020. The
Group also had concentration of credit risk by
customers as 66% (2019: 4%) and 78% (2019:6%)
of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively. In the opinion of the
directors, all five largest customers are customers
with good reputation and creditability.

The Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECL for trade receivables and
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date and has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. The details of the ECL for trade
receivables using a provision matrix is disclosed in

note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other receivables (Other than those included in
the discontinued operation)

The Group considers that other receivables
have low credit risk based on the borrowers’
strong capability to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and low risk
of default. Impairment on other receivables is
measured on 12-month ECL and reflects the short
maturities of the exposures.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

(b)

=N

Credit risk (CONT'D)

Other receivables (Other than those included in
the discontinued operation) (CONT'D)

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into
account the historical actual credit loss experience
over the past 3 years (2019: 3 years) and the
financial position of the counterparties by reference
to, among others, their management or audited
accounts and available press information, adjusted
for forward-looking factors that are specific to
the debtors and general economic conditions of
the industry in which the counterparties operate,
in estimating the probability of default of these
financial assets, as well as the loss upon default in
each case. The management of the Group considers
the ECL of other receivables to be insignificant
after taking into account the financial position and
credit quality of the counterparties.

There was no change in the estimation techniques
or significant assumptions made during the year.

6.

(b)

HBRREE(E)

FERBR(E)

HMEWRE(GFACKREREXR
Z E AW R IRER M) ()

REFHEREEBERR  AKED
ZRBAIF(ZE—NF :35F)8
BLEREEBERERUARRZ S Y
FOMBMRR - BEFE2E(HPE
BIXZUFERRAALERRR
REGHEER  TREBARK
FHFRETXEEBEBERATE
B RTHE B R (EH B - WA A%
EoMEERBOBGULREERBR
THENER KEEXSHTH
MBRRAAREELERR  AKEE
EERAREMEBURRENEREE
EEM T RE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

6. Bt

o a—

BREMER(E)

(0) Liquidity risk (c) REBELERE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the REERBDESRRMNE AKE
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash EERBReRReEEBMRIFE
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the EEERRAANEE 2 EERH
management to finance the Group’s operations RHESHKT  TEHREMRER
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash EREKDZTE -EEHEGEE
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of BEZERER -
borrowings.
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRBELAEESRBE TGRS
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. HWEHFE - BASKRDIBERAK
The table has been drawn up based on the SETEFEERNRZEZEBBHZ
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities cHEBERMBEReRERE T
based on the earliest date on which the Group can REBFERASRERE ©
be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.
Repayable on Total
Effective  demand or Between Between undiscounted Carrying
interest rate  within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flow amounts
REXY RERRS
At 31 March 2020 H-B-2EZf=1-5 EBAE  MEREE  1Z2Fzm 2ESEIR REAR il
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TR TR
Trade payables and accrued charges EAENTEARESBR - 26,408 - - 26,408 26,408
Amount due to immediate holding company BN ERZRAAZE - 698 - - 698 698
Amounts due to related companies ENERLAAZE - 66 - - 66 66
Amount due to a director Ef-%22%3% - 205 - - 205 205
Borrowings fe 12% 2,489 20,950 - 23,439 20,742
Bonds payable Eft R 6-6.5% 705 705 12,091 13,501 11,500
Lease liabilities EBE 6.5% 1,395 998 - 2,393 2,258
31,966 22,653 12,091 66,710 61,877
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(c)

(d)

: : s
NOTES TO THE CONSQ

EMENTS

= . g W
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D) 6. HERAKREE(E)
Liquidity risk (CONT'D) () RBELEAKRGE)
Repayable on Total
Effective  demand or Between Between  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate  within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flow amounts
RERE RURRS
At 31 March 2019 HWZE-NEZA=1-H ERAE RMFREE  1RER 2E5FIA it 54 SAE
% HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T TR Tin T Tin
Trade payables and accrued charges AENEREHER - 100,521 - - 100,521 100,521
Amount due to immediate holding company R EZERATE - 33,050 - - 33,050 33,050
Amounts due to related companies EAEBLAZE 6% 29,797 - - 29,197 29,738
Amount due to a director Eff-22%58 - 58 - - 58 58
Borrowings fF& 5.45%-12% 3,816 2,661 22,600 29,097 23,226
Bonds payable EfiE% 6.5% 65 65 1,188 1318 1,000
Finance lease payables EfBERE 3.68% 120 140 - 260 28
167,427 2,866 23,808 194,101 187,841
Categories of financial instruments (d) S£RIENER
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets: EREE
Financial assets at fair value through profit &2 FEE AEZ
or loss SRMEE - 187
Financial assets at amortised cost (including % 5 AR 2
bank balances and cash) SREE(BERTT
EHRERE) 62,013 196,049
62,013 196,236
Financial liabilities: SHEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHER AR SREaR 61,877 187,841

(e)

Fair values

(e)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial

assets and financial liabilities in the consolidated

statement of financial position approximate their

fair values.

AFE

AEEGAVBRARNEREE
emAaBENREERE QX FER
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises
into three levels of inputs to valuation:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.
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FAIR VALUE M UREMEN ONT'D) 7. RAFHEIEE)

(a) Disclosures of fair value hierarchy: (a) ATESHREE:
Level 3 inputs
FE=REABE
HK$'000
FET
At 31 March 2020 R-B-ZEF=R=+—8H
Investment properties BEME
Commercial — The PRC ¥ - 19,760
Level 1 Level 3
inputs inputs Total
F—R E=H
& A BUR & A\ BUR 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE-NF
=RA=+—-H
Financial assets at fair value through ZAFEFABZREZ
profit or loss: TREE
Listed securities in Hong Kong BEELTES 2 - 2
Listed securities outside Hong Kong  FH&ELASN F 115 185 - 185
Investment properties KEYE
Commercial — The PRC ¥ - - 21,126 21,126
Total Bt 187 21,126 21,313
There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and BE_ZT_ZEFR-_ZT-LF=A
3 fair value measurements for the years ended 31 =T BLEFERE— ZR=*
March 2020 and 2019. NV EAE 2 EITEEEER -
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7.

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D) 7.
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value (b) REF=HL2FEERUQIFE
based on Level 3 fair value hierarchy: BrEEHEK:
Investment properties
REY
2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At the beginning of the reporting period Rk EE 21,126 22,620
Exchange realignment b & AR (1,366) (1,494)
At the end of the reporting period RIEREHIKR 19,760 21,126
(c) Disclosure of valuation process and valuation () RfEREBERGEIEARBAZEZ

DNFPEE(E)

techniques and inputs:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for
the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
Level 3 fair value measurements. The financial
controller reports directly to the Board of Directors
for these fair value measurements. Discussions of
valuation processes and results are held between
the financial controller and the Board of Directors
at least twice a year.

For Level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
normally engages independent valuation experts
with recognised professional qualifications and
recent experience to perform the valuation.
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HE CONSOLIDATE
\TEMENTS

FAIR VALUE M

(c)

NTS (CONT'D) 7.

Disclosure of valuation process and valuation

DFEFE(E)
(€ fERBRMEESERHEAMES

techniques and inputs: (CONT'D) WE (&)
Key unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value F=MAFEFERMAER @R
measurements are as follows: A B R ABENT
Level 3 fair value measurements EZRAFEFTE
Effect on
fair value for
Valuation Unobservable increase of 2020
Description technique inputs Range inputs Total
EIDN- by EIEE
e fHER % TABEEBARE #E NTEZHE At
HK$'000
TER
Commercial properties Direct comparison Price per square ~ RMB19,300 to Increase 19,760
method meter RMB24,500
[E)ikIES BRELEE BYHKRER 19,300AR%BZE i
24,500 AR #
Effect on
fair value for
Valuation Unobservable increase of 2019
Description technique inputs Range inputs Total
B ABURIE Y —T-NF
B fhER % TAEEEARE #E RTEZPE @zt
HK$'000
TER
Commercial properties Direct comparison  Price per square RMB19,300 to Increase 21,126
method meter RMB24,500
ERME BRLEE BT HKRER 19300 AEEZE &/
24,500 A RH

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019,
there were no changes in the valuation techniques

used.

BE_ZT-TFR-_FT—NLF=A
—t+—BLFEMFERAZHBERE
W LR -
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For the year ended 31 Marth 0
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

8.

REVENUE 8. Wz
2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
(re-presented)
(&=E75)
Continuing operations: REREET
Revenue from contracts with customers BB HRE R
within HKFRS 15: FIHEKBEEP
SR
Development and sale of properties YEFERIBE 65,873 157,429
Properties management MEEE 316 -
Operation and management of hydroelectric KEIEE B
power stations 3,916 6,216
Design and sale of electronic products EFEm&TRIEE - 3,862
70,105 167,507
Revenue from other sources: H A AOR U A
Rental income from operating leases KEREMSHESIA
- Fixed lease payments —BEFEHENK 765 933
- Variable lease payments —AEHENK 307 343
1,072 1,276
71,177 168,783

In addition to the information shown in segment

disclosures in note 9 to the consolidated financial Y

statements, the revenue from contracts with customers
within HKFRS 15 is disaggregated as follows:
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8.

REVENUE (CONT'D

L=

8. W&

Year ended 31 March 2020
HE-T-ZH=F=1-AIEE

Continuing operations

FESERY
Operation and
Development management
and sale of Properties of hydroelectric
properties  management power stations Total
NEFBRHE NEEE KEBIEEEE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TH TH A
Type of transaction price: REERER -
At fixed price REEER 65,873 316 3,916 70,105
Timing of revenue recognition: W B -
At a point in time REMERE 65,873 - - 65,873
Over time REERR - 316 3916 4,232
65,873 316 3916 70,105
Year ended 31 March 2019 (re-presented)
BE-F-NEZAST-HILFE(MES))
Continuing operations
REEERH
Operation and
Development management ~ Design and sale
and sale of  of hydroelectric of electronic
properties  power stations products Total
S kEL ETER
REREE BeER Rt & &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TR
Type of transaction price: R5EREY
At fixed price RETER 157,429 6,216 3,862 167,507
Timing of revenue recognition: Ve ciam
At a point in time REARS 157,429 - 3,862 161,291
Over time REERR - 6,216 - 6,216
157,429 6,216 3,862 167,507
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on types of goods and
services delivered by each operating division.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group started
up properties management business which is considered
as a separate operating division for resources allocation
and assessment of performance.

The Group's operating divisions are as follows:
Continuing operations:

(m Development and sale of properties (“Properties
development”)

(2) Properties investment
(3) Properties management

(4) Operation and management of hydroelectric power
stations (“Hydroelectric power business”)

Discontinued operations:

(1) Design and sale of electronic products (representing
consumer electronic audio and video equipment,
karaoke equipment and accessories) (“Electronic
products business”)

(2) Securities trading

The Group ceased to engage in the business of design
and sale of electronic products and securities trading
after the disposal of the Disposed Group. The business
of design and sale of electronic products and securities
trading of the Disposed Group were presented as
discontinued operations in the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”.
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’'D) 9. EWER(E)

(a) Segment revenue and results (a) SDEUWRKRFEE
Continuing operations
FESEER
Hydroelectric
Properties  Properties  Properties power Discontinued
development investment management business Sub-total  operations Total
24
EES ESE nEER KEEH it Lexi &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tién TiEn TiEn T Tén Tén
Year ended 31 March  HZ-Z-%fF
2020 ZAZT-RLEE
Revenue g 65,873 1,072 316 3,916 nan 329,170 400,347
Segment results PEEE 2,284 (1,656) (140) 399 887 (11,491) (10,604)
Interest income LN 34 - 34
Unallocated expenses  AAEER (20,008) - (20,008)
Gain on disposal of HERBARE
subsidiaries 87 7,349 7,436
Share of results of an E(EBERTEH
associate - (294) (294)
Finance costs BBHRA (3,077) (2,395) (5,472)
Loss before tax BHAEE (22,077) (6,831) (28,908)
Continuing operations
REREEE
Electronic
Properties Properties  Hydroelectric products Discontinued
development investment  power business business Sub-total operations Total
BALE
VESES hERE KEXH  ETEREHR Izt Bezi fast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx Thn Thx TEn TR T T
Year ended 31 March ~ HEZE-NE
2019 (re-presented)  ZBZt+-ALEE
(&E5)
Revenue W& 157,429 1,276 6,216 3,862 168,783 390,503 559,286
Segment results AEEE 28,066 (1,185) 1,855 196 28,932 (10,370) 18,562
Interest income FERA 18 - 18
Unallocated expenses  KAERX (17,293) - (17,293)
Share of results of an ~ ERBHAARNER
associate - 762 762
Finance costs HEBRE (2,466) (2,270) (4,736)
Profit (Loss) before tax B AIRH (EE) 9,191 (11,878) (2,687)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 9. DEWER(E)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) SEEERAE

At 31 March 2020
WZE-EEZA=1-H

Continuing operations

RELERH
Hydroelectric
Properties  Properties  Properties power
development investment management business Total
NERE NERE NEER KEXH &3t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TiEn TR TEn TER TR

ASSETS BE
Segment assets AHEE 260,427 67,631 76 34,854 362,988
Unallocated corporate assets AARNFEE 5,397
Consolidated total assets AitEEE 368,385

LIABILITIES B
Seqment liabilities PEER 23,087 2,005 990 1,802 27,884
Unallocated corporate liabilities FARAREE 41,494
Consolidated total liabilities AitEaE 69,378

At 31 March 2019 (re-presented)
RIZ-NEZA-REEN)
Continuing operations
Hydroelectric Electronic
Properties Properties power products Discontinued
development ~ investment business business Sub-total ~ operations Total
g1ER BEIE
ETE nERE KEXH 25 3 LS &3t
HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn T T TERL T TERL TERL
ASSETS KB
Segment assets HEEE 334,300 82,295 41,353 4,023 461,97 112,376 574,347
Unallocated corporate assets ~ AAEATEE 11322
Consolidated total assets AiiBE 585,669
LIABILITIES i

Segment liabilties AEAR 78,597 8,627 5,957 5,544 9,725 51,519 150,44
Unallocated corporate liabilities A2 ERFEE 50,785
Consolidated total liabilities Aitaak 201,029
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(b)

(c)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)

Segment assets and liabilities (CONT'D)

Unallocated corporate assets mainly represent
interest in an associate and deferred tax assets of
the Disposed Group and assets held by head office
and inactive subsidiaries.

Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly represent
amounts due to immediate holding company/
a director/related companies, borrowings, bonds
payable and liabilities incurred by head office and
inactive subsidiaries.

Other segment information

9.

DEER(E)

(b)

(c)

TREERAE(E)

APERRAEETIZRHEREL
REERRZEERBELEHBAEE
A K #8 3 5 B N 1 BR PN BB 1 B 4%
BMEE -

AOEAFBBEIERENERE
BreEl,/ —2&EF BB LIFARX
B BE EBNEZREREERER
TERMBARELNELE -

Hivp MEH

Year ended 31 March 2020
BECE-EE-ACT-ALEE

Continuing operations

RELEEY
Hydroelectric
Properties  Properties  Properties power Other Discontinued
development  investment management business ~ segment  Sub-total  operations Total
Bl
nERE  NERE NEER BRE AM9E M BEERR 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL Thn TERL Thn TERL Thn TEn Thn
Amounts inuded in the  BASE2EFHEEE
measurement of segment  3fEZFE
results or segment assets:
Additions of property, plant £E%% - RERRE
and equipment - 659 - - - 659 4,037 4,696
Additions of right-of-use  FEEBELE
assets - - - - 2,513 2513 - 2513
Concession granted BRETE 12,469 - - - - 12,469 - 12,469
Loss allowance on trade  EFEUFEFERE
receivables - - - - - - 1,037 1,037
Loss allowance on other ~ EftERFEERE
receivables - - - - - - 2,964 2,964
Depreciation of property, 1% HERRENE
plant and equipment - 556 - 2,726 898 4,180 1,494 5,674
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEENE
assets - 1,608 - - 314 1922 3,197 5,119

Allowance for obsolete and BERE#FEERE
slow-moving inventories - -

- - 2,491 2,491
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For the year ended 31 Mz
HE-T-_TFE=FA=1+—HIFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)

(c)

Other segment information (CONT'D)

g8

(c)

PEER (4
Hite o MER(E)

Year ended 31 March 2019 (re-presented)

BE_T-NFZRZT-ALFE(ES))

Continuing operations
Hydroelectric
Properties  Properties  Properties power Other Discontinued
development  investment  management business  segment  Sub-total  operations Total
BAIE
nERE MERS WEEE  kEER AR Nt BEEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEx T T T T T TEn
Amounts included in the AR BEETHEEE
measurement of seqment  3fEZFUE
results or segment assets:
Additions of property, plant B4 - HERRE
and equipment - 103 - - 103 2,59 2,695
Bad debts written off  SE - - - - - 3 123
Reversal of loss allowance & BEMFEGARERE
on trade receivables - - - - - 2,852 2,85
Loss allowance on other ~ EfEUFEE BA R
receivables - - - - - 6,896 6,896
Depreciation of property, 1% - MERZENE
plant and equipment - 406 - 284 1339 4,587 2,025 6,612
Allowance for obsolete and & k& #7 G
slow-moving inventories - - - - - - 1717 1,117
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HEC IDATE
\TEN NTS

LSEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 9. ﬁﬁﬂ(#ﬁ)

(d)

Geographical segments (d)

The Group's revenue from external customers (based
on location of customers) and information about
its non-current assets by geographical location of
the assets are detailed below:

HWESE
AEBERBIBEPZKRE(REP
PrEtR) R BREERBEEER
(REEMEME) 2FBWT

Revenue from external customers REMBEF z W
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(re-presented)
(L&)
Continuing operations: HEREER
The PRC A= 71,177 168,783
Non-current assets (Note) FEREBE E (MiEE)
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&TT
The United States of America (“USA") EMNBRERE([EE]) - 9,067
Hong Kong aBH 2,212 4,435
The PRC 5] 99,084 111,577
101,296 125,079

Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets
and interest in an associate.

M : FRDEETRERERREE
YN A UNCIR X
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For the year ended 31 Marth 0
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)

(e) Information about major customers (e) EEEFER

Revenue from customers contributing 10% or more EREBBERFI0%IAEZER

of the total revenue of the Group is as follows: s AT
2020 2019
—EDEF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
(re-presented)
(&=E7))
Customer A (Properties development) BEEAYERME) 33,647 N/A i@ A

Note: The corresponding revenue did not contribute

10% or more of the total revenue of the Group

for the relevant year.

10. OTHER GAIN AND LOSS

M HERSYEEANEEREHT
E2HREE10%E A L o

10. HttlhaE2REE

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZT-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(re-presented)
(&=E75))
Continuing operations: BEREER

Interest income FlE M A 34 18

Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BER
equipment Bt W 3 -
Others Eth 112 30
149 48

156 China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020



11.

12.

FINANCE COSTS

11. BERR

2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(re-presented)
(&=E7)
Continuing operations: FERE T
Interest expenses on: UTEBEZFERE
- borrowings —{&E 2,583 2,444
- bonds payable —ERER 468 22
— lease liabilities —-HEAE 26 -
3,077 2,466
(LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM 12. REFEKERBE ZBRBA
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (B8R
This is stated after charging: RIBATEEEZS]
2020 2019
—ECTF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
(re-presented)
(&=E=75)
Continuing operations: HEREER
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration): B IXAKN(BIEEEHE):
- Wages and salaries —ITENFE 5,580 5,980
— Contribution to defined contribution —EREH GBI 2 ]
schemes 181 213
5,761 6,193
Auditors’ remuneration % EEN B & 800 1,500
Concession granted B RrRT i
(included in administrative expenses)* (Gt ATTE R ) * 12,469 -
Cost of inventories sold HEGFERAK 48,827 132,896
Depreciation INTEIBZIE
— Property, plant and equipment -ME  BELEHE 4,180 4,587
- Right-of-use assets —EREAE 1,922 -
Legal and professional fee FERENBEER 6,615 2,054
Short-term lease expenses REHEERX 4,334 -
Operating lease payments TETRE R K - 6,065
* During the year ended 31 March 2020, the PRC * HE-_ZT-_TF=ZA=+—HLFE "

value-added tax in respect of sales of properties of

HK$12,469,000 was waived.

ERABENMEZPBIEET12,469,000

BT EHRRAR -
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For the year ended 31 March 202C

HE—F-_FTF=A=1+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUALS" EMOLUMENTS

(a)

158 China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

Directors and chief executive

(a)

13. §$&£ - E. = #T BN N\

EERIRTHRAR

Year ended 31 March 2020
HE-Z-TF-F=1-AIFE

Salaries and
other short-

Contribution
to defined

term employee  Discretionary  contribution Total
Fees benefits bonus schemes  emoluments
FEREM ERMH
we REHESEA MERA BE LS Hes
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i A7 A7 AT A7 AR
Executive directors: HTES:

Wang ling I& (vii) - 1,200 - - 1,200
Wang Xing Qiao TEE (vii) - 2,760 - 3 2,763
Zhao Shuang B - - - - -

Independent non- BUNTES:

executive directors:

Wang Ping I¥ (i) 300 - - - 300
Song Wenke KRR (ii) 95 - - - 95
Cheng Tai Kwan, Sunny g8 (iii) 25 - - - 25
Zeng Guanwei DG (iv) 100 - - - 100
Su Bo 1 (v) - - - - -
Tang Sheng Zhi EEE (vi) - - - - -
520 3,960 - 3 4,483




13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIV HESTPAID 13. EERAEESFMALEHS
INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT'D) (&

(a) Directors and chief executive (CONT'D) (a) EBEERIETHAE(E)

Year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NE-A=1+-HLEE

Salaries and Contribution
other short- to defined
term employee  Discretionary ~ contribution Total
Fees benefits bonus schemes emoluments
e ki ERHT
we  EHEEET [l pizan HELE FiewE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i Fitn THL THL FiEn THL
Executive directors: HTES
Wang Jing I& (vii) - 1,200 - 2 1,202
Wang Xing Qiao IEB (viii) - 2,760 - 2 2,762
Zhao Shuang BR - - - - -
Independent non- BUENTES:
executive directors:
Wang Ping I¥ (i) 300 - - - 300
Song Wenke R (i 17 - - - 17
Cheng Tai Kwan, Sunny iyl (iii) 300 - - - 300
77 3,960 - 4 4,681
Notes: faE -
0) Resigned on 7 May 2020 (i) RIE-_ZTFRALHET
(ii) Resigned on 3 February 2020 (if) R-ZZE-_TF_F=HEE
(iii) Resigned on 30 April 2019 (iii) RZZE-NFHA=Z+RHEE
(iv) Appointed on 30 April 2019 (iv) RZZE—NEFUA=THEZHE
(v) Appointed on 7 May 2020 (v) RZZE_ZTFERA+HEZE
(vi)  Appointed on 3 February 2020 (vi) WIE-_ZTF_A=BHEZHE
(vii)  Mr. Wang Jing is the chairman of the Board of i) IRAEREERER
Directors
(viii) ~ Mr. Wang Xing Qiao is the chief executive officer (viiiy  FEBRERARFNTRABE

of the Company
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For the year ended 31 Marth 0
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT'D)

(a)

Directors and chief executive (CONT'D)

No performance related incentive payments and
emoluments in respect of directors’ other services
in common with the management of the Company
or its subsidiaries were paid or payable to the
directors of the Company for the years ended 31
March 2020 and 2019.

The executive directors’ emoluments were
mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group. The emoluments of the independent
non-executive directors were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

None of the directors waived any emoluments
during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group
to any of the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.
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13.
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(a)

EREER

ESREETBRAE(E)

HE-_Z-ZFR-_F-NF=A
=ET—HLEFE BMEREELAR
AINEMBAREK 2 HMEER
MR R B E E A o E AT A4
BB R RS -

HITESFMIERWEEEAR
A B R & B 05 P BR AR 7% A B
o BUFNTEETHFHEIERR
FERA R FIESF AT MRS 9 BA
& o

Bz Z-_ZFRk-_F—hLF=A
=+—HILFE BMEEFEWET
e -
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group
included two (2019: one) directors,
whose remuneration are set out in note 13(a). The

details of

BEENLERSFMALTHES
INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D) (&

(b)

(b) HEBZSFMAL
AEELEESFHALTEERA
—E-NAF:-RIEFE BRAW

EWe 2 HBHENME13(a) » EER

emoluments of the remaining three (2019: four) ZH(ZE—NF mE) &=
highest paid employees are as follows: EEZHMEMT -
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Salaries and other short-term employee FekHMEHEERTF
benefits 3,352 6,824
Contribution to defined contribution TE B ST 2 5K
schemes 5 _
3,357 6,824
Emoluments of these employees were within the hEREMHS 2 BHENT

following bands:

Number of employees

EEAHE
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NF
Emolument bands: & EE

Nil — HK$1,000,000 %21,000,000/% 7T 1 -

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TE
1,500,000/ 7T 1 2

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 TE
2,000,000/ 7T 1 -

HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 T2
2,500,000/ 7T - 2
3 4
Two highest paid employees of the Group for the HE-_Z-ZTF=A=+—HItHF

year ended 31 March 2020 were from the Disposed

Group (2019: four).

- $$@Fﬁ%(_;

—hF: mR)

EEFHESRALESRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

13.

14.

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EERTEEETMALHE
INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT'D) (#&
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (CONT'D) (b) HBEBREFMAL(E)
No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group AEBEBEREAAERL RS FTHA
to any of the five highest paid individuals as an TERNLEMTE - ERESEMA
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or SN A AR & E 18 2 52 ) ok B L
as compensation for loss of office. None of these B -BHE_ZT_ZEFR_Z-—NEF
individuals waived any emoluments during the ZA=F+—BHLFE  BEAITRK
years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019. EEMMNE -
INCOME TAX EXPENSES 14. FRIBEHAX
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2019: BEBFE BB ANFE 2 (A5 ERT S FIER
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. R165% (ZE—NF:165%):t& - i
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as RAKERBZE_Z_ZFR_T-AEF=
the Group has no assessable profits for the years ended A=+t—HLEFEITEFMAERTEHN - &
31 March 2020 and 2019. WERE NS HAHERE -
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) in respect of FRAPEAMERELCPREPERSH
operations in Mainland China is calculated at a rate 25% (TRZEMEB D HRBRITEN 2B R
(2019: 25%) on the estimated assessable profits for the B BB DI B A F 2 5T FE SR Bl m R #2 B =&
year based on existing legislation, interpretations and 25% (=T —NLF : 25%)5tE -
practices in respect thereof
LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to TR ER R T IS ER R EF E30%E
60% on the appreciation of land value. 60% UK -
2020 2019
—EIEF “E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHBT
(re-presented)
(E7)
Current year NEE
EIT PEMEN 26 6,823
LAT 4 i I E 2,591 784
2,617 7,607
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14.

15.

INCOME TAX EXPEN

14. Fﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁi(ﬂ%)

Reconciliation of tax expenses HIER X ¥R
2020 2019
—EBCEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(re-presented)
(&E5))
Continuing operations BESEER
(Loss) Profit before tax MR AT (&8 )% A (22,077) 9,191
Tax calculated at the domestic tax rate of B E16.5%
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) —NF 1 16.5%)
AHEZBIE (3.643) 1,517
Non-deductible expenses AR R 2 5,957 609
Tax exempt revenue TIAFA e W (311) (3)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R E A B AR R AL 2 B
operating in other jurisdictions NCIRSEE vl 2 (255) 3,012
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERREBEZHETE 2,589 3,181
Tax effect of timing difference not recognised ARFEFERERFHMEZR 2
in current year MEE2 321 343
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BRERIRERZBIEER
recognised - (464)
Others Hh (98) -
LAT T ILER (2,591) (784)
EIT effect of LAT RIS E T8 ETH
2 648 196
2,617 7,607
DIVIDENDS 15. BRE
The directors of the Company do not recommend the ARFEETREANBE_FT_TFR-F
payment of any dividend for the years ended 31 March —“NFE=ZA=t-BEFERMEEARE -

2020 and 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

16. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings

16. FR(EE)BF
AR GRER RIS (BR) B THRE

per share of the Company is based on the following data: INTIEEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
(re-presented)
(&)
(Loss) Profit attributable to owners of the RNEESR AEN(EE)
Company: A
- Continuing operations —BEREER (24,694) 1,584
- Discontinued operations — BRI EEB (420) (15,533)

Number of shares

RHEE
2020 2019
—E-ZE —E-NF
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for BRI E TR ERK
the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share  #& (&) EHN 2
IR & Ak
A 4,249,147,288 3,976,797,561
2020 2019
—ECERF “T-hF
HK cent HK cent
AL xll
(re-presented)
(&75)
(Loss) Earnings per share: BR(EE) BT
Basic and diluted EARREE
- Continuing operations —BEREE (0.58) 0.04
- Discontinued operations — BRI EETR (0.01) (0.39)
(0.59) (0.35)

Diluted (loss) earnings per share is same as the basic
(loss) earnings per share for the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019. The calculation of diluted (loss) earnings
per share does not assume the exercise of the Group’s
outstanding share options as it would result in an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic (loss) earnings per share for
the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.
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17. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@)

;,/“.‘ - ;
THE CONSOLIE

On 10 April 2019, the Group acquired 100%
of the issued share capital of Benxi Zhongfu
Shiye Company Limited* (R ZHP EE X 4B 2
Al) (“Zhongfu Shiye”) at a consideration of
RMB10,000,000, which was satisfied as to (i)
RMB9,000,000 by the allotment and issue of
new consideration shares; and (ii) RMB1,000,000
in cash. Zhongfu Shiye was engaged in the
construction, sale of construction materials,
property rental, education consultation, car parking
services, advertising and property management
in the PRC. At the acquisition date, a total of
280,000,000 new shares of the Company were
allotted and issued and the closing market price
of the share of the Company on that date was
HK$0.042. Details of the transaction were set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 26 March
2019 and 10 April 2019.

On 29 September 2019, the Group acquired
100% of the issued share capital of Benxi Zhongfu
Property Development Company limited* (A;ZF &
EERZE AR QA (“Zhongfu Property”) at a
cash consideration of RMB20,000,000. Zhongfu
Property was engaged in property development and
property sale, property rental, property advisory,
property management and car parking services in
the PRC. Details of the transaction were set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 27 September
2019.

*  For identification only

17. REKHIEB AR

(@)

(b)

RZZE—NFMA+AH  AEEK
BAZPEEXEARABFAS
BEXDE2BPEBRTRAEA REA
10,000,000 A R #& + Jy(i)iF 8 BE %
REEATH R ERH 459,000,000 A
R#  R(i)A IR € # #1,000,000
AR EBEERPHEEIR
EEEMEE MERE  HAE
B FESRE  HEERWEE
o RAFRUEE B AR B R AT
4 280,000,000/ %71 Bz 5+ A &
NEIRMD A Z B 2 T E/R0.0428
T BRARSGZHBHRARFR
AT NF=-—A=-+"BEZ=
T-NFMA+HZRAE -

RZZE—NAFALAZ+AIAA &&E
[# 1A20,000,000 A R ®E SR E
WEAZPEEHERBEER QA
([HEFEME]) 2D BETRA -
PEERMERTENERMERM
BMELE WERE MER
HoMEEREREBSRE - B
RGZHFBERARARANHAZT
—hEARZ++HRZRE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

17.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT’D)

The following table summarised the consideration paid

and the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities

assumed at the date of acquisitions.

17. WEBHEBAR (&)

TERBARKE R RNENKE L RAKE
BENMTAZEAGBSE -

Acquisition of assets and liabilities

WEEERAEE
Zhongfu Zhongfu
Shiye Property Total
FEEX FEREE #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
(note 17 (a))  (note 17 (b))
(MEE17(a))  (F=E17(b))
Consideration RE
Cash paid 2R E 1,166 21,980 23,146
Shares issued BTG, 11,760 - 11,760
12,926 21,980 34,906
Recognised amounts of assets B R AT U i & B M P A
acquired and liabilities assumed B{E&%
Properties for sale under BRPEHFEYE
development 23,681 14,239 37,920
Other receivables HibpE W I 2,925 10,447 13,372
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRES 173 55 228
Trade payables and H 5 N RRIE A
other payables e3R8 (13,853) (2,761) (16,614)
Net assets acquired BEWENEEFE 12,926 21,980 34,906
Net cash flow on acquisition of  UYEEKIEB AR
subsidiaries REemEFEH
Net cash acquired BWERIRE T 173 55 228
Cash consideration paid BENEeRE (1,166) (21,980) (23,146)
Net outflow of cash and cash ReERBLEEYRD
equivalents ikl (993) (21,925) (22,918)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—_E-_TFE=A=1—HILFE

18. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 18. BDRLREEK

Upon the completion of the Disposal on 13 January 2020, NRZTE_TF—AT=—HEKNLESEHEE
the Group ceased to engage in the business of design REETHREEFEMRT REEARE
and sale of electronic products and securities trading. HFEBEE -

Thus, the business of design and sale of electronic Hit - HESECEFEMBTREEAR
products and securities trading of the Disposed Group BHFEBEEBRBE_Z-_TF=A=+—
constituted discontinued operations for the year ended AEFEERERIEEEER - Alt - &8
31 March 2020. Accordingly, certain comparative figures MBHRERTHE THRBBEELET] - B

in the consolidated financial statements have been
re-presented to separately reflect the results of the
discontinued operations.

(a) The loss for the year from the discontinued (a)
operations is analysed as follows:

The results of the discontinued operations for
the period from 1 April 2019 to 13 January
2020, which have been included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

TRMERIREEBHES -

FERACKRIEEEEBZEBED
W

AZE-NFNHNAR—RAEZ-ZZ=F
F—A+=HHEMEFAZEGER
REMEHEEROERIELEE
W2 EEMT

comprehensive income, are as follows:

Period from

1 April 2019 Year ended

to 13 January 31 March

2020 2019

R-ZZE—NF H=

@H El:s: —E-NF

—A ‘I'_ = HH & LEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Revenue ez 329,170 390,503

Cost of sales SHEMK A (244,420) (295,917)

Gross profit ES 84,750 94,586

Other income E A - 10

Distribution costs 2 SHR AR (52,556) (42,703)

Administrative expenses THAX (43,446) (64,941)

Other gain and loss H bl kB8 (239) 2,678

Finance costs B 75 X AR (2,395) (2,270)

Share of results of an associate JE(EBEE N R LR (294) 762

Loss before tax BRELRIEE (14,180) (11,878)

Income tax credit (expense) Frisfis e (F) 2,298 (1,430)

Loss after tax from discontinued operations FEDKIFEEHEE 2

bREiEEE (11,882) (13,308)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BB A A s 7,349 -
Loss for the year from discontinued FERBERIELE

operations Ei vl o (4,533) (13,308)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from REUTSENES
;}ILA(;}\LLL_H)/\%%E\ :

— operating activities — 1 EE) (17,708) 11,793

— investing activities *%xéfxﬁ@ﬁ 11,437 2,746

- financing activities —BEEY (4,539) (5,383)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

18. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONT'D)

(a)

18. ERILEEXRK(E)

(CONT'D) (@ (&)
Period from
1 April 2019 Year ended
to 13 January 31 March
2020 2019
RZZE—hF
MAE—HBZ BEZZT—NF
—ZT-TF =ZA=+—H
—Bt+=HH~8 LEFE
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Loss) Profit from discontinued operations AT ALREMLKA
attributable to: ERIEEEEK 2
(E18) &= T -
— Owners of the Company —AREHEAA (420) (15,533)
- Non-controlling interests — IR ER (4,113) 2,225
Loss for the year from discontinued operations “EE KB DK IHE L
EB2EE (4,533) (13,308)
The details of the Disposal are as follows: (b) HEFTBEZFBET
HK$'000
FHET
Net assets of the Disposed Group disposed of: EREREEENTEEN
BEFHE:
Property, plant and equipment M - WERZRE 6,326
Goodwill [EES 8,512
Interest in an associate REEE R E 2 2,576
Deferred tax assets BERBEE 8,278
Right-of-use assets FREEE 6,645
Inventories T8 39,209
Trade receivables, deposits and other receivables B HREBGRIE - e kEAm
JE W kA 108,947
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFEFTABIZEREE 189
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LR R 10,034
Creditors and accrued charges JETERIB K FERT & A (88,861)
Contract liabilities GHBEE (3,984)
Amounts due to related companies JE S BB A B RUR (44,409)
Borrowings BE (2,157)
Lease liabilities HEEE (7,232)
Net assets of the Disposed Group HEEEEEFE 44,073
Release of translation reserve BnEFEED (13,922)
Non-controlling interests in the Disposed Group RNEEER 7 IEHARER (30,000)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B AR KRS 7,349
Cash consideration ReRE 7,500
Net cash outflow on disposal of the Disposed Group: HEHEEE7BE R EEE
Cash consideration received BWRESKRE 7,500
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHERELBSFEY (10,034)
(2,534)
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. BEWHE
HK$°000
FET
AT FAIR VALUE RATE

At 1 April 2018 RZZE—-—NFWMA—H 22,620
Exchange realignment M & 5 % (1,494)

At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZE—NF=A=+—H
k=ZZE—-AFMA—H 21,126
Exchange realignment B & (1,366)
At 31 March 2020 R-_B-_TBF=A=+—H 19,760

The investment properties are situated in Zhangian,
Pingshan District, Benxi City, Liaoning Province, the PRC.

The Group’s investment properties were valued at the
end of the reporting period by BEEFREME T hE
EFEAR2QT, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected to the Group. The valuation was
arrived at by reference to recent market prices for similar
properties in similar locations and conditions. The details
of valuation techniques and inputs used in the valuation
were disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group pledged
the investment properties of HK$19,760,000 (2019:
HK$21,126,000) to secure the borrowings granted to the
Group (note 28).

The Group leases out its investment properties to third
parties under operating leases with average lease terms
of 20 years. Monthly rental charges consist of variable
payments that are based on a percentage of sales of the
tenant. The terms of the leases also require the tenants
to pay security deposits according to the then prevailing
market conditions.

18 W I P B 4 AR L
i -

AEBREYE T EBAE B HEEE 2B
VRAEBREXRGEMERESTFTRIBELINE
EFHAERARNBERRETHE - &b
ET2Z R R G 2 RRYE ML
MERER - MEMAZEETERBARK
B HBERBERGRA M WMERMET -

RBEHR AEBEERBPEEDE
19,760,000 7L (ZZF— L4 : 21,126,000
B ERAEEERNEE (M5E28) ©

AEEBEEEHERTHRENELET
E=7 FHEHAR0F - AHSERE
BERAEAHELL AR AT ENR - HEK
RIRE AR ANAREERRITHRI MR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20. V¥ BERRE

Hydroelectric
power
stations Furniture,
Motor  Leasehold  and related Computer ~ fixtures and Plant and
vehicles improvement infrastructure  equipment  equipment  machinery Total
B
ik KEHR BE#E
nE %% REEERE BBy k¥ BEREE )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TR TR Thn TR Thn Thn
osT AR
At 1 April 2018 WZ5-/\EMA-A 198 11,213 44,429 2,206 5811 34,450 98,307
Additions hE - - - - 340 2,35 2,69
Exchange realignment Ex3E (13) (588) (3,449) - . (1,80) (5,330)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 R-Z-nE=A=t-AR
Z5-NERA-A 185 10,625 40,980 2,206 6,151 35,525 95,672
Transfer to right-of-use assets upon RNERGMRAERRZ 654
adoption of HKFRS 16 BREPRAELE - - - - - (339 (339
Additions HE 659 - - 2374 - 1,663 4,69
Disposal it - (2,297) - - (646) - (2,943)
Exchange realignment ExEE (1) (539) (3,156) - - (1.178) (4,885)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT - - - (4,580) 4,652) (26,068) (35,300)
At 31 March 2020 R-E-ZE-A=1-R 832 7,789 31824 - 853 9,603 56,901
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND BHEREE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2018 RZ5-\EmA-A 52 1,407 7,19 2193 3,615 N7 36,180
Provided during the year TEERE U 1,199 2,132 6 855 2,3% 6,612
Exchange realignment ExgE 3 (31) (286) - - (95) (415)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZE-NEZA=1-AR
“E-NEmA-H 73 2,575 9,042 2,199 4,470 24,018 031
Transfer to right-of-use assets upon FREANEREENZ 165 %
adoption of HKFRS 16 EREPRELE - - - - - (44) (44)
Provided during the year TEERA 174 912 2,045 4 606 1,933 5,674
Disposal e - (2,297) - - (646) - (2,943)
Eichange realignment EX3E 9 (63) (449) - - (150) (671)
Disposal of subsidiaries LEMBAT - - - 2,203) 3,590) (23,181) (28,974)
At 31 March 2020 R-B-RE=f=1-8 238 1127 10,638 - 840 2576 15,419
CARRYING AMOUNT EEf
At 31 March 2020 RZEZEEZA=1-H 594 6,662 27,186 - 13 1,027 41,482
At 31 March 2019 RZE-N¥=R=1-A 112 8,050 31,938 7 1,681 11,507 53,295

On 1 April 2019, plant and machinery with carrying
amount of HK$295,000 held by the Group under finance
leases were transferred to right-of-use assets upon

adoption of HKFRS 16 (notes 2 and 21).

170 China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

£ AR

[ == B eV

BEGCREEE(ME2R21) -

R-ZZE-NFHA—R AEERBERE
B N AEREE/295,000/8 THRE &

HENRAT BT B R %1655 12 8%



‘;Ill'

- e

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS/

Dy T

21. AN HEERE FHESE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE E/fHEaE
LIABILITIES
The movements of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities HEZT-ZF=-A=1+—HLFE FF

within HKFRS 16 during the year ended 31 March 2020

are set out below:

EREZEHFINWT

Right-of-use assets

ERREEE

HBRELAZ1RANEREEELA

Leasehold Office Plant and Lease
lands premises  machinery Total liabilities
HELT WRAGE HERES et HEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTERT FTERT FER FTER
(i) (i) (iii)
At the beginning of the $E48E /8 B 75 & 2 8|
reporting period upon 55 16% 1% & 2 1)
adoption of HKFRS 16 42,146 9,524 295 51,965 (10,755)
Additions NE - 2,513 - 2,513 (2,513)
Depreciation of right-of-fF FEEETE
use assets (1,608) (3,475) (36) (5,119) -
Disposal of subsidiaries & HE R - (6,386) (259) (6,645) 7,232
Interest expenses on  HEEBEMER X
lease liabilities - - - - (472)
Lease payments HERMT - - - - 4,273
Exchange realignment [E R F% (2,683) 23 - (2,660) (23)
At the end of the RIS R
reporting period 37,855 2,199 - 40,054 (2,258)
Current portion BIERER (1,286)
Non-current portion  JEBIEIE (972)
(2,258)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

HE—F-_FTF=A=1+—HIFE

21.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS/
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE
LIABILITIES (CONT'D)

(i)

(iii)

As at 31 March 2019, prepaid land lease payments
represented upfront payments for leasehold land in the
PRC of HK$42,146,000, which were classified as operating
leases. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the prepaid land
lease payments are presented under right-of-use assets.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group leased office premises in
Hong Kong for its daily operations for a term of two years
with fixed lease payments. The lease of office premises
imposes a restriction that, unless approval is obtained
from the lessor, the right-of-use asset can only be used
by the Group and the Group is prohibited from selling or
pledging the underlying assets. In addition, the Group is
also required to keep those properties in a good state of
repair and return the properties in their original condition
at the end of the lease.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had plant and machinery
which were held under finance leases. Upon adoption of
HKFRS 16, the plant and machinery are presented under
right-of-use assets and the corresponding finance lease
payables are reclassified as lease liabilities.
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(iii)

P-AF=A=+-8

I8 5 £ 3
ﬁ%mﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%MﬁEm¢lﬁE
4 2 8 1 518 42,146,000 T © A
EEUHHREERE165R% - BN L
HERE2MNAREREELE -
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PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS/

21. AN HEERE FHESE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE E/HEaE(E
LIABILITIES (CONT’'D)
The Group has recognised the following amounts for the AEBERREAFEATEE
year:
2020 2019
—EBCEF —NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Lease payments — Short-term leases HENR—REHEE 4,334 -
Operating lease payments LERE R - 11,991
Expenses recognised in profit or loss RIBEP RN 4,334 11,991
Total cash outflow for leases MERe LR 8,607 11,991
The operating lease payments of HK$5,926,000 for the HEZT—hhF=A=+— EIJJ:@F_

year ended 31 March 2019 were from the Disposed
Group.

Commitments under operating leases

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had no commitment for
short-term leases.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had commitment for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

FAER 55,926,000 k8 HE

REHEAE
RIZB-ZE=ZA=+—H AEETERE
HATH ERIE -

T-NFZA=+—8  AEEREMH
RGP EEE N 2 RR&EHE

operating leases in respect of office premises as follows: SHRENT
HK$'000
FET
Within one year —F R 9,650
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRAF(RREEEMTE) 6,617
16,267
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For the year ended 31 Marth 0
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

OTHER RECEIVABLES e
2020 2019
e —FNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
Trade receivables E 5 ERE (a) 24,899 100,184
Prepayments for the properties for sale R FEWETEN KA
under development 25,595 -
Prepayments TE I FRIE 211 3,017
Other tax receivables Hth pe e B 18 9,253 9,947
Deposits and other receivables BE MCE b U IR 14,053 10,432
74,011 123,580
Notes B 5
(a) The ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of loss (a) RS ER - B 5 WKIE (R E 185
allowance, based on invoice dates which approximate the BHIERBERAR(RSBREHEL)
respective recognition dates, at the end of the reporting BRECOMTT -
period is as follows:
2020 2019
—Z-2F —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
0 — 30 days 0&30H 4,329 85,822
31 - 60 days 31£260H - 3,068
61 - 90 days 61290H 284 827
Over 90 days HBHR90H 20,286 10,467
24,899 100,184
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT'D)

Notes (CONT'D)

(CONT’D)

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 0
to 365 days (2019: 0 to 365 days) to its trade customers.
Before accepting any new customers, the management
assesses the credit quality of the potential customers
and define appropriate credit limits. Management closely
monitors the credit quality of trade receivables and
considers the trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired to be of good quality.

Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables:

22, ESEWHE  ReRHRE
WEE ()

B E (42)

(%)
AEBMBTHESIEFZEHEESN
FO0E365H(ZT—NF : 08365H) °

BEMEMHERPZA  ERENGHEE
EFMEREE YETEENEER
E-EREETENEZEKFENE
HEE RAERBHTKRENESE
WHENEREERRY °

BHRWHA BEBBYEE

2020 2019

—EZERF —T—NnEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

At the beginning of the reporting period RIREH] 7,346 10,198
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR (8,383) -
Increase (Decrease) in loss allowance BEBEzENn S CR) 1,037 (2,852)
At the end of the reporting period RIER - 7,346

Included in the loss allowance for trade receivables are
individually impaired trade debtors with an aggregated
balance of HK$Nil (2019: HK$7,346,000) which have
either been placed under liquidation or in financial
difficulties.

BB FEREEREGEREREERE
ZEFEWEE  BESKATET(ZE
— NV £ 7,346,000 7T) - BERAA
FTEEITER SR B -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

Notes (CONT'D)

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT'D)

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to

provide for ECL using the lifetime expected loss provision for

trade receivables. To measure ECL, trade receivables have been

grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and past due

days adjusted for forward looking information.

BESRWRE - &

Wk ()

B E (42)

AEBEBEEMBHRESEANFIR 2@ E
RESEAGARA 2 MERERRAERS
EEERRE At ERHEREER  BHEYK
REEEARGEERRSH AR BB BELR
ERTE LA REITRE -

Less 181
than 31-60 61-90  91-180 days- Over Over 2-3
30 days days days days  1year 1year years
Current past due past due past due past due past due past due past due Total
ki 31E 61Z 91E 181KZE af ki
M 30KR& 60K 90X 180X 15 BB1F  2E3F @t
At 31 March 2020 R-Z-ZE
ZA=t+-H
Weighted average MEFHEREEE
expected
loss rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Receivable amount EYHIESSE
(HK$'000) (F#1) 22,660 2,078 - - - - - 161 24,899
Loss allowance BiEARE
(HK$'000) (FiExT) - - - - - - - - -
At 31 March 2019 RZZ—NEF
=R=+—8H
Weighted average MEFHEREFEE
expected
loss rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 90% 7%
Receivable amount BRFAESE
(HK$'000) (T#&m) 86,305 518 675 2,513 1,699 3,504 4,176 8,140 107,530
Loss allowance BiRERE
(HK$'000) (T#&m) - - - - - - - (7,346)  (7,346)
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24,

PROPERTIES FOR SALE UNDER BRPEGEWF
DEVELOPMENT
2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Properties for sale under development BRERPFEME 36,312 =
Expected to be recovered: T8 HA U B I ]
— After one year ——Fi% 36,312 -

All properties for sale under development are located in
the PRC.

Properties for sale under development of HK$14,133,000
as at 31 March 2020 were pledged to secure banking
facility with an aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$25,928,000 granted to third parties.

FBEBRTHREDEILNTE -

R-E-_ZTFE=FR=+—8 ZEREPEFED
314,133,000 TE AU ERE FE=
AR $A%E#)25,928,0008 T 2 SR1TRLE ©

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 24. HEHEZWE
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Properties held for sale HIERE 2 E 142,958 201,524

Expected to be sold: TEHIH SR -

— After one year ——F1% - 66,073

All properties held for sale are located in the PRC.

FBERIELEZMEDLNTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

25.

26.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The movements (excluding those arising from increases

25. EHEE

FRARBEAMBRERUBISHAREZ

and decreases both occurred within the same year) of BERadilmsataEe e (FF 3 EE
contract liabilities from contracts with customers within Mo P 2 ZBBRINIAT
HKFRS 15 during the year are as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
At the beginning of the reporting period R EE 6,376 3,475
Disposal of subsidiaries BB A (3,984) -
Recognised as revenue R AR E (566) (3,475)
Receipt of advances or recognition of U 21 38 1<) 5% 3k T oR FE LURRIE
receivables 3,900 6,376
Refund to customers ME P RR (5,327) -
Exchange difference EERZERE (245) -
At the end of the reporting period RIS R 154 6,376
All the performance obligations that are unsatisfied as RZEZTEF=A=+—H FE(ZZ—
at 31 March 2020 (2019: all) are part of contracts that NEF B RBTZRAOEEHAEHZ
have an original expected duration of one year or less. —H#5  ZEFEEONREFHR A —F A
Given that the Group applies the practical expedient T ERAEEEREENBRELE
in paragraph 121(a) of HKFRS 15, the transaction 155 E 121 ZEERE  ZEBHNE
price allocated to these performance obligations is not ERESEZZSERRTHE -
disclosed.
AMOUNTS DUE TO IMMEDIATE 26. ENEEERLR,—F&

HOLDING COMPANY/A DIRECTOR/
RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts due are interest-free, unsecured and
repayable on demand.
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27. TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUED

BEZRNRERESER

CHARGES
2020 2019
—T=-FF —F-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FET FAT
Trade payables E ) ANE e (a) 8,685 34,885
Other creditors HAth fe I AR 18 (b) 11,566 42,345
Accrued expenses R X 6,157 23,291
26,408 100,521

Notes

(b)

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice

i aE

(a) RBERARBREREARZEZENRE

dates at the end of the reporting period is as follows: TERBEOWMT
2020 2019
—Z2-2F ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
0 - 30 days 0%30H 873 30,615
31 - 60 days 31260H - 2,118
61 - 90 days 61290H - 304
Over 90 days #EiBo0R 7,812 1,848
8,685 34,885

The average credit period is 90 days (2019: 90 days) and
certain suppliers grant longer credit period on a case-by-
case basis.

Included in the other creditors as at 31 March 2020
was the amount due to Ministry of Natural Resources
of the People’s Republic of China and State Taxation
Administration for the remaining considerations of
the acquisition of properties under development of
HK$6,862,000 (2019: Nil). The amount was unsecured,
interest-free and had no fixed repayment terms.

FHEEHAIOR(ZZT—NF  90K)
BETHEERAREERTEREER

HA o

(b) WRZZTZZF=A=+—8 HMERH
REFEERKBERTYEARTAE
ERPEARENMBEARERSRER
IS4 3 2 386,862,000 L( =& —
NE &) ZFBRAEER 2E8BT

EEEERIR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 ‘
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

28. BORROWINGS 28. B&
2020 2019
—ECERHE —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other borrowings, secured HEE » BER 20,742 23,226
The borrowings are repayable as follows: BEEENAT
2020 2019
—E-ZF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Within one year —FR - 1,049
More than one year but not exceeding two B —F AN EAmRmE
years 20,742 -
More than two years but not exceeding five HBEMERNEBAAT
years - 22,177
20,742 23,226
Less: Amounts due within one year shown o AR —FAEENIE
under current liabilities (PR mEBEET) - (1,049)
Amounts due after one year AR —FREEHNIE 20,742 22,177

Note:

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s borrowings in the amount of
HK$20,742,000 (2019: HK$22,177,000) are fixed-rate borrowings
and bear interest at a rate of 12% per annum (2019: 12%).
The borrowings are secured by the investment properties of the
Group (note 19). The loan period is from 3 May 2018 to 3 May

2021.
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THE CONSOL

= V]

BONDS PAYABLE

2020 2019

—E-FF —FAF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Corporate bonds — non-current liabilities AAEESF - ERBAE 11,500 1,000

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company
issued corporate bonds with principal amount of
HK$10,500,000 (2019: HK$1,000,000) under a placing
agreement dated 13 November 2018 for bonds
issuance with an aggregate principal amount of up to
HK$200,000,000 (the “Placing Agreement”).

The bonds carry fixed interest rates ranging from 6% to
6.5% per annum. The bonds are with a maturity period
ranging from three to five years from the issue date, and
the interests are paid semi-annually in arrears on 30 June
and 31 December in each year and on the maturity date.

Pursuant to the Placing Agreement, the Group may, at
any time, before the maturity date redeem the bonds by
giving written notice of not less than 10 business days
at not less than 100% of the principal amount of the
bonds together with payment of accrued interests up
to the redemption date. The early redemption option
is not separated from the bonds since the economic
characteristics and risks of the early redemption option
are closely related to the bonds.

HE-_Z-_ZF=-A=+—HLEE ' &
ARIBEBHA-Z—NF+—HA+=8
ZHEEHBZE(NABRETABESERA
200,000,000 T2 &%) ([ EWHZE]) %
TR £%510,500,0008 T (2 — AL :
1,000,000/ 7T) 2 A RIMES °

BEFONEEFMNEN F6REE65E - EF
ERMEASEETAMES =20 BF
BABHFIN-—R(AIBFEAA=ZTAER
TZA=T—R)RREBAXA -

RBEE R - AKE AR 2 A AER
HESHEHTOMOEEXANERR
HoBIDREZFAREEN100% GER X
NBZEEAREETHE)BEES - 1257
BOREREYIFEINES - HiEsEEE
Pl v ) A B o M B L B BB S5 R AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_T-_TFE=A=+—HILFE

30. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the major deferred tax assets recognised
and movements thereon during the year:

30.

Depreciation

i FE B IR
FACEREIBELHBEEREESH W
T

allowance Tax losses Others Total

nERE FEER Hith st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHEL FHT FHT FHT

At 1 April 2018 RZZE—N\FHNAE—H 2,997 4,324 89 7,410

Charge to profit or loss EREazal’s (1,054) (351) (25) (1,430)
At 31 March 2019 and RZE-NF

1 April 2019 ZRA=+—HEK

“Z-hFHA—A 1,943 3,973 64 5,980

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 18) HERBRR(FHFE18) (3,384) (5,333) 439 (8,278)

Credit (Charge) to profit or loss FAERZ(BBRENR) 1,441 1,360 (503) 2,298

At 31 March 2020 RZEZTE=RA=+—H - - - -

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of
HK$50,205,000 (2019: HK$32,660,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. HK$5,330,000
(2019: HK$4,500,000) of the unused tax losses will expire
within 5 years and the remaining unused tax losses of
HK$44,875,000 (2019: HK$28,160,000) may be carried
forward indefinitely.

The accumulated profits of certain PRC subsidiaries would
be subject to withholding taxes if they are distributed.
The estimated withholding tax effects on the distribution
of accumulated profits of these subsidiaries were
approximately of HK$Nil (2019: HK$2,008,000).
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31

32.

. SHARE CAPITAL

31. B=R
Nominal value Number
per share of shares Amount
BREE RDEE kx|
HK$ HK$'000
BT FET
Authorised: EERA
At 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019, RZZ—N\FMAE—AH -
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 —E-NAF=ZA=+—8"
T-NFOA-BK
ZEZTF=A=+—H 0.01 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: CRITRHZRA
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and A=-ZF—\FMWA—H -
1 April 2019 —NF=A=+—H
—NEHA—H 0.01 3,976,797,561 39,768
Allotment and issue of shares upon Wi —RIME A REREER
acquisition of a subsidiary BT (M EE17(a))
(Note 17(a)) 0.01 280,000,000 2,800
At 31 March 2020 R-ZBE-ZEF=ZA=+—H 0.01 4,256,797,561 42,568

On 10 April 2019, the Company issued 280,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each as part of the
consideration for acquisition of a subsidiary (note 17(a)).
These shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in
all respects.

RESERVES 32.

(a) The Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

RZF-NAFHOEA+H ARREET
280,000,000/% & fi% M fE0.01/8 7T 2 & &
H& CERKB-RMNBRR ZKE(HE

17(a)) 2 — 8D o ZERMHN S @5 EHRE
ERDHEERSELS -
R
(a) XKH
AREENRFELEZHESBEEIRN
RAREEHE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_E-_FFE=A=1T—HILFE

32. RESERVES (CONT'D)

(b)

(c)

The Company

The amounts of the Company’s reserves and the
movements therein for the year ended 31 March

2020 are as follows:

32. f#E(E)

(b) AFAF

BE T TZHFE=A=+—HItHE
EARAKFEEREBSENOT ¢

Capital
Share  redemption  Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve surplus losses Total
BK
R EE BEGHE HABER ZHER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THER TiERL TR
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\EMA-H 385,419 577,204 99,172 (718,273) 343,522
Loss and other comprehensive loss REEFBREMZEERE
for the year - - - (17,230 (17,230)
At 31 March 2019 and R-E-AF=A=1-HRK
1 April 2019 ZE2-NEMA-H 385,419 577,204 99,172 (735,503) 326,292
Loss and other comprehensive loss AEEFERE M2 EEE
for the year - - - (79,396) (79,396)
Issue of shares upon acquisition — WE—FRM B AIRETRR
of a subsidiary 8,960 - - - 8,960
At 31 March 2020 R-ZB-EE=A=1+-8 394,379 577,204 99,172 (814,899) 255,856
Nature and purpose of reserves () REMHEREN
(i) Share premium (i BB

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in excess
of their par value per share and is not
distributable but may be applied in paying
up unissued shares of the Company to be
issued to the shareholders of the Company
as fully paid bonus shares or in providing
for the premiums payable on repurchase of
shares.

184 China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

B fn i B8 A B R & Rk A
EENERETROMESE
#i 8 - 30 3F Al 93 IR 18 7] A
RER AR RS A 2 R 3%

TTHRETRD

ERBR

AL SR AE A3 [ 38 B ) B B AT

IE o



32. RESERVES (CONT

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (CONT'D)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Contributed surplus

The Group’s contributed surplus represents
the difference between the nominal value
of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the group reorganisation, over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefore.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 3(o) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents the
cancelled shares upon the repurchase and
accordingly the issued share capital of the
Company was reduced by the nominal value
of these shares. The premium on repurchase
was charged against accumulated profits.
An amount equivalent to the nominal value
of the shares cancelled was transferred
from accumulated profits to the capital
redemption reserve.

32, BE(E)
(c)

EEEERE ()
(i) BABER
AEENMARBIERES

(iii)

(iv)

B EAmRESZHERBK
17 T B 82 7K 2 ) Bt bt 32 4 P
BITROEEZIMROER -

BE R
ERRBEREREIEEZ
MBHmRBMEMELEZRE
SNEERE - HBEEAMT
R MY FE3(0)PT 8 2 & AT K
REZHE

BARDE A

B O B R B B
HEE A - B ARAR DT
B AR B 2% 5 B £ H (B 10
o [ B R R A K
e HEREBUE R EE
Z—ELHEBE R EHE R
EEANEOEHRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BT _TF=A=+—HIFE

33.

34.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. EXREE
2020 2019
—E-EHF —hE&E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHET
Properties for sale under development: BRPRSEDE
Contracted but not provided for in the RER BT EBRERETL
consolidated financial statements BREE 680 2,636

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following related party

transactions.

Details of the remuneration of key management
personnel, who are the directors of the Company, during
the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements. Key management personnel are
deemed to be the members of the Board of Directors
of the Company which has responsibility for planning,

directing and controlling the activities of the Group.

During the year, the Disposed Group purchased electronic
products amounting to approximately HK$7,013,000 (2019:
HK$15,878,000) from SIH Limited and its subsidiaries, a
company in which the former directors and substantial
shareholders of the Company had material interests.
The transactions also constituted continuing connected
transactions as defined in the Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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.

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

35.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

The following table shows the changes in the
Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities

(a)

RERERERME

METHELINEELE

TRETNFAAEEREZDHES

i MEEEE
during the year:
Total
liabilities
from
Finance lease Bonds Lease financing
Borrowings payable payable liabilities activities
REEY
B8 REARERE EfiE% HEEE EENEEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TiEn TiEn TEn TEx
At 1 April 2018 RZZE-\ENA—H 4,900 - - - 4,900
Interest expenses FlER% 4,446 - n - 4,468
Interest payables ERFE (609) - (15) - (624)
New finance lease HRERE - 340 - - 340
Exchange difference EREE (36) - - - (36)
Cash inflow (outflow) in financing BEEHIASHA
activities: (i)
New borrowing raised HEEfE 22,213 - - - 22,213
Repayment 6 (3,851) (92) - - (3,943)
Proceeds from bond issuance BAERIMETE - - 1,000 - 1,000
Interest paid BRHE (3,837) - (7) - (3,844)
At 31 March 2019 and RZZ-NE
1 April 2019 ZA=+-8k
“T-N\EMA-H 23,226 248 1,000 - 24,474
Adoption of HKFRS 16 RinE R BREER
£16% - (248) - 10,755 10,507
New leases HHE - - - 2,513 2,513
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT (2,157) - - (7,232) (9,389)
Interest expenses FERY 4,532 - 468 472 5,472
Interest payables FERF| & (622) - (175) - (797)
Exchange difference EHER (344) - - 23 (321)
Cash inflow (outflow) in financing RBEBELHRA/
activities: (i)
New borrowing raised NEEEE 2,243 - - - 2,243
Repayment of borrowing BEEE (2,243) - - - (2,243)
Repayment of lease liabilities BRHEEAR - - - (3,801) (3,801)
Proceeds from bond issuance BERBIFENE - - 10,500 - 10,500
Interest paid 2RFE (3,893) - (293) (472) (4,658)
At 31 March 2020 i
=A=t+-8 20,742 - 11,500 2,258 34,500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
(B E_TF=A=+—HIFE

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35. RERERERMTET (2
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT'D)
(b) Major non-cash transaction (b) FTEFRERB

RZZE-AFOA+E ARFLE
¥ 17280,000,000/% & fi% M {€0.01
BT EBR  ERWKE—HWNEB
REIREZ 82 (HE17(a)) »

On 10 April 2019, the Company issued
280,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
as part of the consideration for acquisition of a
subsidiary (note 17(a)).

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36. FEMEAT

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Place of

incorporation
or registration/

Nominal value of

issued ordinary
share capital/

ARBZETEMBARFENT :

Percentage of equity
interests attributable

Company Name operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
BRI
HMARLR M, LERRA AN AEERE
AR =E Sk AMEREE EEAML IEEHK
2020 2019
ZEIEE  ZZ-NF
AEEHFEEERARA The PRC* RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Properties investment
e 20,000,000 A R # NERE
NEMEZEKNEEAR  The PRCH RMB500,000 100% 100%  Operation and management of a
NS hydroelectric power station
o 500,000 A &% KBWELER
KEREEAENFKS  The PRC* RMB45,500,000 100% 100%  Operation and management of a
BEERAA hydroelectric power station
o+ 45,500,000 A K1 KERELER
AEFARFHEREBR  The PRCH RMB20,050,000 100% 100%  Properties development
NS
R 20,050,000 A £ MERE
NERBEMEETEER The PRC* RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Properties management
NS
g 50,000,000 A R # NEER
Zhongfu Shiye The PRC* RMB 10,000,000 100% - Properties development
REHX leily 10,000,000 A R ¥ MERE
Zhongfu Property The PRC* RMB30,000,000 100% - Properties development
HE R HE* 30,000,000 A K EGES
* These subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprises in * ZEMBRARATHINGBERE -
the PRC.
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The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results for the year or constitute a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital outstanding
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

3300 PNCIIE=))
EERRLRAIARBANBARNEIEZRE
REFZRE  IBRAKEEEFETR
WMy  EERRMREEEMCHBEARZHF
B BLENBRIIE -

RAFRIAFEAERER - HEMBLQ
AIAERAREEERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_T-_TFE=A=+—HILFE

37.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

37. XATFHBEARRET

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
Note HK$000 HK$'000
BT FExT FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB B 13 911
Right-of-use assets FREEE 2,199 -
2,212 911
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Deposits and prepayments & RIEFKIE 581 3,319
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE LB 8 A B 5RIR 331,768 405,126
Amount due from a director B —RBEERIA - 51
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEEEY 2,106 2,515
334,455 411,011
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accrued charges &R 4,810 9,388
Amounts due to related companies  JET BB A B2 E 66 437
Amount due to immediate holding R EEIER AR
company RIE 19,609 35,037
Lease liabilities HESE 1,286 -
25,771 44,862
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 308,684 366,149
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERMNE
LIABILITIES =L 310,896 367,060
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Bonds payable FEfRHES 11,500 1,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 972 -
12,472 1,000
NET ASSETS EEFE 298,424 366,060
Capital and reserves AR GEE
Share capital f% A< 42,568 39,768
Reserves i 32(b) 255,856 326,292
TOTAL EQUITY HERER 298,424 366,060
This statement of financial position was approved and BEMBRARER _ZE_EF+L A+
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 July HEESERIAETRETE - WHNATRE

2020 and signed on its behalf by

&
Wang Jing
Director
FE
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REPORTING PERIOD

The COVID-19 outbreak has brought about additional
uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment in the
PRC and the USA. As far as the Group’s businesses are
concerned, the outbreak has so far caused operational
delays. The Group has put in place contingency measures
to lower the impact from this outbreak. However, the
situation remains fluid at this stage. At the date of
authorisation of these consolidated financial statements,
the Group is not in a position to estimate the financial
impact of these circumstances.

e AR ER

2019 MM ERRBERARNEERPEKE
B EREFREMIEERER - A%
BXBmE  BHEBA - RBEDEREEL
Hl o AEBERIRESEE - AR ELLRE
BORE - A - BAIBZNTRE - RA
RAMBHRREMEZR  ARBEXMGE
ZEMREK NS E
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

L FTBEHE

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ZE-RF ZEB—tF ZE-NF ZZE-NF ZEZEF
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET FET
(Re-
presented)
(&)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FRERE T
Revenue & 425,523 462,025 518,038 168,783 71,177
(Loss) Profit before taxation M ELRT (B ) %S F (14,495) (36,987) (24,113) 9,191 (22,077)
Taxation B (1,504)  (10,100) 115 (7,607) (2,617)
(Loss) Profit for the year from  ARFERBIFELE
continuing operations 7 (B8 )N (15,999) (47,087) (23,998) 1,584 (24,694)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS DRI &K
(Loss) Profit for the year from  AREEREDKILLL
discontinued operations 2z (R )RF - 8,081 (2,723) (13,308) (4,533)
Loss for the year NEEEE (15,999)  (39,006)  (26,721)  (11,724)  (29,227)
Loss attributable to: THIATEGES
Owners of the Company VIN/NCIEZF RN (22,243) (46,055) (27,251) (13,949) (25,114)
Non-controlling interests IR 6,244 7,049 530 2,225 (4,113)
(15,999)  (39,006)  (26,721)  (11,724)  (29,227)
At 31 March
MR=B=+—8H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
TE-RF ZE—F ZE-NF ZE-NAF ZEBZEF
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets mEE 829,444 679,829 508,867 585,669 368,385
Total liabilities BEE 450,567 364,965 93,422 201,029 69,378
378,877 314,864 415,445 384,640 299,007
Attributable to owners KA BHEE AEILTRIA
of the Company 357,136 285,344 384,330 350,768 299,007
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR A 21,741 29,520 31,115 33,872 -
378,877 314,864 415,445 384,640 299,007
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